
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION 
 Community Development District 

 
 May 24, 2021 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Pine Ridge Plantation  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.pineridgeplantationcdd.com 

 
May 18, 2021 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The audit committee meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District will be held Monday, May 24, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida 
32068.  Immediately following will be the regular business meeting.  Following are the 
advance agendas for these meeting: 
 
  
Audit Committee Meeting 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Review and Ranking of Audit Proposals Received in Response to the RFP 
 
 III. Other Business  
 
 IV. Adjournment 
 
Regular Business Meeting 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments 
 
 III. Consideration of Replacement of Beam 
 
 IV. Consideration of Tynes Boulevard Fence 
 
 V. Consideration of Architect Renderings 
 
 VI. Consideration of Resolution 2021-04, Approving Request for Proposal 

Documents for the District’s Recreation Improvement Project 



 
 VII. Consideration of Natasha Bilinski-Hernandez Yoga Instructor 
 
 VIII. Consideration of Proposals for Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Services 
 
 IX. Consideration of Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 

2022 
 
 X. Consideration of Resolution 2021-05, Approving the Proposed Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2022 and Setting a Public Hearing Date for Adoption 
 
 XI. Consideration of Richmond American Homes Proposal for Reclaim Irrigation 

Water Meters 
 
 XII. Staff Reports 

A. Attorney  
 
  B. District Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (1,366) 
    
  C. Engineer - Requisition No. 393A 
         
  D. Operations Manager - Report 
   
  E. Amenity Manager  
  
 XIII. Public Comments / Supervisor’s Requests 
 
 XIV. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 14, 2020 Meeting, February 16, 

2021 Special Meeting and the March 16, 2021 Meeting  
 
  B. Acceptance of the Minutes of the March 16, 2021 Audit Committee 

Meeting 
 
  C. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period 

Ending April 30, 2021  
 

D. Assessment Receipts Schedule 
 
  E. Approval of Check Register 
 
  F. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 1 from Basham Lucas 
 
 XV. Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor Jeff Arp 
  



 XVI. Next Scheduled Meeting – 07/20/21 @ 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation 
Amenity Center 

 
 XVII. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  







 
 

1702 Lindsey Rd  
                                                                    Jacksonville, Fl. 32221 

Ph (904) 781-7060    Fax (904) 619-5011 
 
 

CGC1523954    CMC1250093   CFC1428601   CCC1329086 
 

 
Pine Ridge CDD            

 
Attn: Pine Ridge CDD                                                                                                             
3 12 21                                                                                                                                                                 
Re:exterior truss repairs -4200 Pine Ridge Parkway 32068   
 
All Weather Contractors is proposing the following services for the below 
mentioned prices. Any item not specifically mentioned is subject to a written change 
order. 
>bring in equipment as needed to do the following scope of work  
>shore up arera as needed to remove the (1) front truss at the amenities bldg.  
>remove the (1) front curved custom made exterior truss at the amenities center  
>includes approx. 18ft of scrolled end beam also  
>we will re-use any good anchors /brackets  
>stain the new work to match the existing as close as possible  
>clean up job site  
*if any hidden damages are found outside the repairs listed above we will show proper 
authortity before pricing  
*due to lumber pricing the beam/truss manufacture will only hold price for 20 days  
 
Projects under $10,000.00 are due on completion. Projects over $10,000.00 require a 20% mobilization draw followed by 50%, 20% 
and 10% upon completion (some exceptions apply) 
This proposal may be withdrawn at any time. 
Payments are considered late 30 days after invoice approval(s) and are subject to 2.0% per month interest plus fees. 
Many projects require a Notice to Owner. If you receive such please understand this is not a lien on your property and is merely 
making the Owner aware of services per Florida Statute. 
 

Total Price $37,760.00 
 

 
Proposal Signed by______________________   Printed Name___________________ 

Thank you for your consideration-Scott Haines -C 904.402.6561 



 
 

 

 



WIGGINS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
OF NORTH FLORIDA, INC. 

 

   

91 Branscomb Road, Suite 17                                                     CBC 1259164                                                       Office: (904) 214-7999 
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043     Fax: (904) 214-9040 

 
Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 
4200 Pine Ridge Parkway 
Middleburg, FL  32068 
Office: (904) 291-8878 
Email: prmgr@riversidemgtsvc.com 
CDD Website: www.pineridgeplantationcdd.com 
 
Feb. 26, 2021 
 
Dear Pine Ridge Plantation CDD, 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to submit a proposal to replace the 5-1/2” x 11-1/2” x 
28’ arched beam at the rear of the community center, and the three attached beams. This does not 
include replacing the two rafter beams, which are still in good condition. 
 
Beams will be replaced with matching size beams made of untreated kiln dried southern yellow 
pine, painted to match the existing beams as close as possible, new bolts will be used to re-
attached the new beams, but the existing metal plates will be reused. 
 
The price to complete the work described above is $39,000. Let me know if you have any 
questions. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
Bill Garrison 
Wiggins Construction Company of North Florida, Inc. 
91 Branscomb Road, Suite 17 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
2018 & 2019 Clay County Builder of the Year 
2021 Clay County Builders’ Council Chairman 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Date:

TO:

JOB:

PHONE:

This quote is only good until

TOTAL FOR COMPLETE PROJECT:

Accepted By

 SUBMITTED BY: Andrew Williamson

   Armstrong Fence Co. 3226 Talleyrand Ave

   Jacksonville, FL 32206 Phone: 904-612-1276

   Fax: 904-356-2332

ops@rms.hf.com
4200 Pineridge Parkway

904-239-5723

Armstrong Fence Co a leader in perimeter security throughout the Southeastern United States intends to submit a bid for subject project.

1. Provide and Install (296ft) of 3-rail white ranch style pvc

Fence Proposal
5/14/2021

Date

Pvc Fence Proposal to include the following:

       -post to be 5"x5"x6' routed for 3-rails
       -rails to be 1-1/2" x 5-1/2" 
       -post to have flat cap

       -all post to have 3500psi concrete footer

2. Remove and Haul away existing (296ft) of wood railing

$6,233.00
*includes all taxes and fees

June 13, 2021



Date:

TO:

JOB:

PHONE:

This quote is only good until

TOTAL FOR COMPLETE PROJECT:

Accepted By

 SUBMITTED BY: Andrew Williamson

   Armstrong Fence Co. 3226 Talleyrand Ave

   Jacksonville, FL 32206 Phone: 904-612-1276

   Fax: 904-356-2332

Date

Pvc Fence Proposal to include the following:

       -post to be 5"x5"x6' routed for 3-rails
       -rails to be 1-1/2" x 5-1/2" 
       -post to have flat cap

       -all post to have 3500psi concrete footer

$6,560.00
*includes all taxes and fees

June 13, 2021

Fence Proposal
5/14/2021

Tom Chewning
4200 Pineridge Parkway Project 2

904-671-4204

Armstrong Fence Co a leader in perimeter security throughout the Southeastern United States intends to submit a bid for subject project.

1. Provide and Install (395ft) of 3-rail white ranch style pvc





                                        7380 Philips Hwy, Suite 103B............Office (904) 268-1638
Jacksonville, FL 32256.............................Fax (904) 230-2780  

3 Year Labor Warranty ~ Lifetime Manufacture's Warranty on Materials

FENCE HEIGHT:       3’           4’           4.5’          5’           6’           8’           T

TERRAIN:          Even                 Slight                 Steep
 
CLEARING:                   Best Fence                  Customer

OLD FENCE:                 Best Fence                  Customer

GRADE:                          Top Level                    Follow Grade

HOA/ARB:                     Best Fence                  Customer

  Customer:
     
  Address:

PROPOSAL/CONTRACT

Customer must assume responsibility for placement of fence unless all 
appropriate survey pins (metal pipes) or concrete monuments are uncovered 
prior to installation. Best Fence Co., Inc will assist owner in locating pins if 
provided copy of survey. All materials will remaim property of Best Fence Co., 
Inc. until paid in full.
By signing, customer agrees to proposal including materials, prices, terms & limitations as 
outlined above. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs 
will be executed only upon written order, and will become an extra charge over and above 
the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond our 
control. Best Fence Co, Inc. is not responsible for damage to underground obstructions 
such as utilities, sprinkler lines, pipes, etc. Returned checks are subject to a $25.00 service 
fee. Cancelled orders will be subject to a 50% restocking fee.
Job #    

Total Feet    Total Price

Sub Total     Deposit

    Balance due 
 
    Proposal is good for             days

Payment Terms  

Best Fence:   Date:

Customer:   Date:

  Community:
 
  Phone:
  
  Email:

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box
  N/A

Victoria
Text Box

Victoria
Text Box
N/A

Victoria
Text Box
N/A

Victoria
Text Box
N/A

Victoria
Text Box
N/A

Victoria
Text Box
       

Victoria
Stamp

Victoria
Stamp

Victoria
Stamp

Victoria
Stamp

User
Typewriter
30

User
Typewriter
1/2 down balance due at completion

User
Typewriter

User
Typewriter

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

User
Rectangle

Virginia
New Stamp

Virginia
New Stamp

Virginia
Typewriter

Virginia
Typewriter
KH

Virginia

Tish
Stamp

Tish
Typewriter
406'

Tish
Typewriter
$7,752.00

Tish
Typewriter
5/17/2021

Tish
4 rail Ranch Rail

Tish
Typewriter
Furnish and install 406' of 4' high white 4 rail ranch rail style vinyl fence. All posts to be set in concrete.



 
 
 



 
 

1702 Lindsey Rd  
                                                                    Jacksonville, Fl. 32221 

Ph (904) 781-7060    Fax (904) 619-5011 
 

                         CGC1523954    CMC1250093   CFC1428601   CCC1329086 
 

 
Pine Ridge CDD              

 
Attn:Tom-Management                                                                                                              
4 11 21                                                                                                                                                                  
Re:fence installation     
 
All Weather Contractors is proposing the following services for the below 
mentioned prices. Any item not specifically mentioned is subject to a written change 
order. 
 
>supply and install up to 400 lin ft of new 4ft tall white vinyl fence along the street in 
location per management at camp ridge drive  
>includes new pressure treated post with vinyl sleeves -new post to have concrete poured 
around the base of the post 
>new vinyl fence to be a 3 rail white vinyl fence  
>clean up job site  
 
Projects under $10,000.00 are due on completion. Projects over $10,000.00 require a 20% mobilization draw followed by 50%, 20% 
and 10% upon completion (some exceptions apply) 
This proposal may be withdrawn at any time. 
Payments are considered late 30 days after invoice approval(s) and are subject to 2.0% per month interest plus fees. 
Many projects require a Notice to Owner. If you receive such please understand this is not a lien on your property and is merely 
making the Owner aware of services per Florida Statute. 
 
 
Total Price $11,870.00 
 
 
Proposal Signed by______________________   Printed Name___________________ 
Thank you for your consideration 
Scott Haines  
C 904.402.6561 
 



 
 

7749 Normandy Blvd 
#145-347 

Jacksonville, Fl. 32221 
Ph (904) 781-7060    Fax (904) 619-5011 

 
                         CGC1523954    CMC1250093   CFC1428601   CCC1329086 

 

                                      Tynes HOA             

 
Attn:Maria – Riverside Management                                                                                                             
2 10 21                                                                                                                                                                  
Re:fence replacement   
 
All Weather Contractors is proposing the following services for the below 
mentioned prices. Any item not specifically mentioned is subject to a written change 
order. 
 
>demo and remove up to 240 lin ft of deteriorated wood fence along the blvd per 
management  
>supply and install up to 240 lin ft of new white vinyl 3 rail fence to match the existing 
by the amenites center as close as possible  
>new vinyl sleeves will be installed over pressure vterated 4 x 4 poist with concrete 
around the base of the each post  
>clean up job and haul away debris  
 
Projects under $10,000.00 are due on completion. Projects over $10,000.00 require a 20% mobilization draw followed by 50%, 20% 
and 10% upon completion (some exceptions apply) 
This proposal may be withdrawn at any time. 
Payments are considered late 30 days after invoice approval(s) and are subject to 2.0% per month interest plus fees. 
Many projects require a Notice to Owner. If you receive such please understand this is not a lien on your property and is merely 
making the Owner aware of services per Florida Statute. 
 
Total Price $7,770.00 

 

Proposal Signed by______________________   Printed Name___________________ 
Thank you for your consideration 

Scott Haines -C 904.402.6561 

 

 
 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

1  

RESOLUTION 2021-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT APPROVING REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
DOCUMENTS FOR THE DISTRICT’S RECREATION 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) is 
a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes (the “Act”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to construct, operate, and maintain amenity 
and recreation facilities and associated neighborhood improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the District’s best interests to competitively solicit proposals through 
a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) process for its ____________ Recreation improvement project 
(the “Project”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires to approve in substantial form the RFP notice and 
Evaluation Criteria for the Project attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman, in 
consultation with District staff, to effectuate any revisions to the documents attached as Exhibit 
A, and the preparation of the additional documents necessary to prepare a final RFP project 
manual for the Project, and other documents that are in the best interests of the District;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board further desires to authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman, in 

consultation with District staff, to approve the scope of the Project that will be subject to the 
RFP, the timing of the RFP notice, and all procedural matters related to the RFP.      
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1.   All of the representations, findings and determinations contained above 
are recognized as true and accurate, and are expressly incorporated into this Resolution. 
  

SECTION 2. The Board hereby approves in substantial form the documents attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, and subject to further review and revision by District staff as finally 
approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman. 

 
 SECTION 3.  The Board hereby authorizes the Chairman, in consultation with District 
staff, to 1) effectuate any revisions to the documents attached as Exhibit A, and the preparation 



 

2  

of the additional documents necessary to prepare the RFP; and 2) approve the scope of the 
Project that will be subject to the RFP, the timing of the RFP notice, and all procedural matters 
related to the RFP.  Consistent with such approvals, the Chairman, District Manager, District 
Counsel, District Engineer, , District Architect, Secretary, and Assistant Secretaries are hereby 
authorized, upon the adoption of this Resolution, to do all acts and things required of them to 
effect the procurement contemplated by the RFP, and all acts and things that may be desirable or 
consistent with the RFP’s requirements or intent.  The Chairman and Secretary are hereby further 
authorized to execute any and all documents necessary to affect the RFP.  The Vice Chairman 
shall be authorized to undertake any action herein authorized to be taken by the Chairman, in the 
absence or unavailability of the Chairman, and any Assistant Secretary shall be authorized to 
undertake any action herein authorized to be taken by the Secretary, in the absence or 
unavailability of the Secretary. 
 

SECTION 4.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 5.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of May, 2021. 
 
ATTEST:      PINE RIDGE PLANTATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________   ________________________________ 
Secretary      Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
Exhibit A: RFP Notice and Evaluation Criteria 



 

  

 
Exhibit A 

 
RFP Notice and Evaluation Criteria 

 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION _________ RECREATION PROJECT 

 
 Notice is hereby given that the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) will 
receive proposals for the following District project: 
 

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION __________ RECREATION PROJECT 
 

 The contract will require contractors to provide for the construction, labor, materials, and equipment 
necessary to construct (Insert description of improvements subject to RFP) and other associated scopes as more 
particularly described in the Project Manual and in accordance with the plans and specifications.  
 
 The Project Manual, consisting of the proposal package, contract, proposal form, plans, and other materials, 
will be available for public inspection and may be obtained beginning ____________ __, 202_ at __:00 _.m. from 
England-Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258 (904) 642-8990. Plans 
may be obtained only as full size (24x36). It is recommended that prospective proposers email orders to 
____________, P.E. (insert e-mail address) in advance to avoid printing delay and for cost information. Proposers 
may purchase as many Project Manuals as they would like. No partial Project Manual or plans will be available. The 
Project Manual will be available for pickup at the offices of England-Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine 
Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258.  
 

There will be a pre-bid proposal conference at England-Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine 
Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258, on _____________ __, 202_ at __:__ _.m.  
 
 Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria included in the Project Manual. The District 
reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, make modifications to the work, award the contract in 
whole or in part with or without cause, provide for the delivery of the project in phases, and waive minor or 
technical irregularities in any Proposal, as it deems appropriate, if it determines in its discretion that it is in 
the District’s best interests to do so. Any protest of the Project Manual, including the terms and specifications, 
must be filed with the District within 72 hours of pickup of the Project Manual, together with a protest bond in a 
form acceptable to the District and in the amount of $10,00.00. In the event the protest is successful, the protest 
bond shall be refunded to the protestor.  In the event the protest is unsuccessful, the protest bond shall be applied 
towards the District’s costs, expenses and attorney’s fees associated with hearing and defending the protest.  Failure 
to timely file a protest will result in a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and other law.  
 
 Firms desiring to provide construction services for the referenced project must submit one original and 
eight copies of the required proposal no later than 5:00 p.m. on __________ __, 202_ at the offices of England-
Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258.  The District’s Engineer will 
conduct a special public meeting at that place and time to publicly open the proposals.  No official action will be 
taken at the meeting.  The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Florida law including but not limited to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  A copy of the agenda for the meeting may be 
obtained from the District Engineer, at England-Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, 
Florida 32258, or ____________, P.E. (insert e-mail address). The meeting may be continued in progress without 
additional notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record.  Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the 
District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contacting Governmental Management Services, 
LLC, the District Manager, at (904) 940-5850, or at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, World Golf Village, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 
955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office.  



 

  

 
Proposals shall be in the form provided in the Project Manual and submitted in a sealed envelope pursuant 

to the Instructions to Proposers. The District reserves the right to return unopened to the Proposer any proposals 
received after the time and date stipulated above. Each proposal shall remain binding for a minimum of one hundred 
and twenty (120) days after the proposal opening. 
 
 The successful Proposer will be required upon award to furnish a payment and performance bond for one 
hundred percent (100%) of the value of the contract, with a Surety acceptable to the District, in accordance with 
section 255.05, Florida Statutes.  
 
 All questions regarding the Project Manual or this project shall be directed in writing only to England-
Thims & Miller, Inc., 14775 Old St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258, or ____________, P.E. (insert e-
mail address). No phone inquiries please.  

 
 



 

  

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Request for Proposals – __________ Recreation Construction Project 

Evaluation Criteria 
 
1. Personnel. (10 Points) 
 

(E.g., geographic locations of the firm’s headquarters or permanent office in relation to the project; 
capabilities and experience of key personnel, including the project manager and field supervisor; present ability to 
appropriately staff and manage this project; evaluation of existing workload; proposed staffing levels, etc.) 
 
2. Proposer’s Experience. (20 Points) 
 

(E.g. past record and experience of the respondent with Pine Ridge Plantation CDD; past record and 
experience in similar projects and with other CDD’s and units of government; volume of work previously performed 
by the firm; character, integrity, reputation, of respondent, etc.) 
 
3. Understanding of Scope of Work. (10 Points) 
 

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates an understanding of the District’s needs for the services 
requested. 
 
4. Financial Capability. (10 Points) 
 

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates the adequacy of Proposer’s financial resources and stability as a 
business entity, necessary to complete the services required. 
 
5. Price.   (25 Total Points) 
 

Points available for price will be allocated as follows: 
 
15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest cost proposal , (i.e., the summation of the unit price 
extensions using quantity estimates provided, the allowances shown, plus the proposal contractor’s fee) for 
completing the work.  All other proposals will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference 
between the Proposer’s bid and the low bid. 
 
10 Points are allocated for the reasonableness of unit prices and balance of bid. 
 
6. Schedule. (25 Points) 
 

Points available for schedule will be allocated as follows: 
 
15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the proposal with the most expedited construction schedule 
(i.e. the fewest number of days) for completing the work. All other proposals will receive a percentage of this 
amount based upon the difference between the Proposer’s timeline and the most expedited construction schedule. 

 
10 Points will be allocated based on the Proposer’s ability to credibly complete the project within the Proposer’s 
schedule without a premium cost for accelerated work and demonstrate on-time performance. These points will also 
take into account the demonstration of Proposer’s understanding (through presentation in the proposal of a milestone 
schedule) of how to meet the required substantial and final completion dates and the delivery approach outlined in 
the Project Manual.   
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Ability of Personnel Proposer's Experience Understanding of Scope 
of Work

Ability to Furnish the 
Required Services Price

(e.g., geographic locations 
of the firm's headquarters 

or permanent office in 
relation to the project; 

capabilities and experience 
of key personnel; present 

ability to manage this 
project; evaluation of 

existing workload; 
proposed staffing levels, 

etc.)

(e.g., past record and 
experience of the Proposer 
in similar projects; volume 

of work previously 
performed by the firm; past 

performance for other 
Community Development 

Districts in other contracts; 
character; integrity; 

reputation of respondent, 
etc.)

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates an 

understanding of the 
District's needs for the 

services requested.

Extent to which the 
proposal demonstrates the 

adequacy of proposer's 
financial resources and 
stability as a business 

entity necessary to 
complete the services 

required (e.g., the 
existence of any natural 

disaster plan for business 
operations).

Points will be awarded 
based upon the price bid 
for the rendering of the 

services and 
reasonableness of the price 

to services.

Point Total

Proposer 20 20 20 20 20 100

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank

Grau & Associates

Pine Ridge Plantation Creek Community Development District
Auditor Selection Evaluation Criteria



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

  PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

PROPOSED BY: 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PL 

600 Citrus Avenue, Suite 200  (772) 461-6120
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

CONTACT PERSON: 

J. W. Gaines, CPA, Director 

DATE OF PROPOSAL: 

April 29, 2021



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SECTION PAGE 
 
 
 A. Letter of Transmittal 1-2 
 

B. Profile of the Proposer 
   
  Description and History of Audit Firm 3 
 
  Professional Staff Resources  4-5 
 
  Ability to Furnish the Required Services 5 
 
  Arbitrage Rebate Services 6 
 
A. Governmental Auditing Experience 7-16 

 
B. Fee Schedule 17  

 
C. Scope of Work to be Performed 17 

 
D. Resumes 18-33 

 
E. Peer Review Letter 34 

 
Instructions to Proposers 35-36 
 
Evaluation Criteria 37 
 
 

 
 



- 1 -

April 29, 2021 

Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Dear District Manager: 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to present our professional credentials to provide audit 
services for Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District. 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has assembled a 
team of governmental and nonprofit specialists second to none to serve our clients.  Our firm 
has the necessary qualifications and experience to serve as the independent auditors for Pine 
Ridge Plantation Community Development District.  We will provide you with top quality, 
responsive service. 

Experience 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a recognized leader 
in providing services to governmental and nonprofit agencies throughout Florida.  We have 
been the independent auditors for a number of local governmental agencies and through our 
experience in performing their audits, we have been able to increase our audit efficiency and; 
therefore, reduce costs.  We have continually passed this cost savings on to our clients and will 
continue to do so in the future.  As a result of our experience and expertise, we have developed 
an effective and efficient audit approach designed to meet or exceed the performance 
specifications in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the standards for 
financial and compliance audits.  We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; “Government Auditing 
Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act, Subpart F of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
with minimal disruption to your operations.  Our firm has frequent technical updates to keep our 
personnel informed and up-to-date on all changes that are occurring within the industry.  



- 2 - 

 
Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
April 29, 2021 
 
Our firm is a member of the Government Audit Quality Center, an organization dedicated to 
improving government audit quality.  We also utilize the audit program software of a nationally 
recognized CPA firm to assure us that we are up to date with all auditing standards and to assist 
us maintain maximum audit efficiencies. 
 
To facilitate your evaluation of our qualifications and experience, we have arranged this 
proposal to include a resume of our firm, including our available staff, our extensive prior 
governmental and nonprofit auditing experience and clients to be contacted. 
 
You need a firm that will provide an efficient, cost-effective, high-quality audit within critical time 
constraints.  You need a firm with the prerequisite governmental and nonprofit experience to 
perform your audit according to stringent legal and regulatory requirements, a firm that 
understands the complex nature of community development districts and their unique 
compliance requirements.  You need a firm with recognized governmental and nonprofit 
specialists within the finance and governmental communities.  And, certainly, you need a firm 
that will provide you with valuable feedback to enhance your current and future operations.  
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is that firm.  J. W. 
Gaines is the person authorized to make representations for the firm. 
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to submit this proposal to Pine Ridge Plantation Community 
Development District. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 

audit
BTEGF



- 3 - 

PROFILE OF THE PROPOSER 
 
Description and History of Audit Firm 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a Treasure 
Coast public accounting firm, which qualifies as a small business firm, as established by the 
Small Business Administration (13 CFR 121.38), with offices in Fort Pierce and Stuart.  We are a 
member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants.  The firm was formed from the merger of Edwards, Berger, Harris & 
Company (originated in 1972) and McAlpin, Curtis & Associates (originated in 1949).  J. W. 
Gaines and Associates (originated in 1979) merged with the firm in 2004.  Our tremendous 
growth rate experienced over the last 71 years is directly attributable to the firm’s unrelenting 
dedication to providing the highest quality, responsive professional services attainable to its 
clients. 
 
We are a member of the Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) to assure we meet the highest standards.  Membership in 
this practice section requires that our firm meet more stringent standards than standard AICPA 
membership.  These rigorous requirements include the requirement of a triennial peer review of 
our firm’s auditing and accounting practice and annual Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
for all accounting staff (whether CPA or non-CPA).  For standard AICPA membership, only a 
quality review is required and only CPAs must meet CPE requirements. 
 
We are also a member of the Government Audit Quality Center (“the Center”) of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants to assure the quality of our government audits.  
Membership in the Center, which is voluntary, requires our firm to comply with additional 
standards to promote the quality of government audits.   
 
We have been extensively involved in serving local government entities with professional 
accounting, auditing and consulting services throughout the entire 71 year history of our firm.  
Our substantial experience over the years makes us uniquely qualified to provide accounting, 
auditing, and consulting services to these clients.  We are a recognized leader in providing 
services to governmental and nonprofit agencies on the Treasure Coast and in Central and 
South Florida, with extensive experience in auditing community development districts and water 
control districts.  We were the independent auditors of the City of Fort Pierce for over 37 years 
and currently, we are the independent auditors for St. Lucie County since 2002, and for 38 of the 
42 years that the county has been audited by CPA firms.  Additionally, we have performed audits 
of the City of Stuart, the City of Vero Beach, Indian River County and Martin County.  We also 
presently audit over 75 Community Development Districts throughout Florida. 
 
Our firm was founded on the belief that we are better able to respond to our clients needs 
through education, experience, independence, quality control, and personal service.  Our firm’s 
commitment to quality is reflected in our endeavor of professional excellence via continuing 
education, the use of the latest computer technology, professional membership in PCPS and 
peer review. 
 
We believe our approach to audit engagements, intelligence and innovation teamed with sound 
professional judgment enables us to explore new concepts while remaining sensitive to the 
fundamental need for practical solutions.  We take pride in giving you the assurance that the 
personal assistance you receive comes from years of advanced training, technical experience 
and financial acumen. 



- 4 - 

Professional Staff Resources 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has a total of 
32 professional and administrative staff (including 14 professional staff with extensive 
experience servicing government entities).  The work will be performed out of our Fort 
Pierce office with a proposed staff of one senior accountant and one or two staff 
accountants supervised by an audit manager and audit partner.  With the exception of the 
directors of the firm’s offices, the professional staff is not specifically assigned to any of our 
individual offices.  The professional and administrative staff resources available to you 
through Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL are as 
follows: 
   Total 
Partners/Directors (CPA’s) 5 
Principals (CPA) 1 
Managers (CPA) 1 
Senior/Supervisor Accountants (2 CPA’s) 3 
Staff Accountants (1 CPA) 9 
Computer Specialist 1 
Paraprofessional 8 
Administrative   4 
 Total – all personnel 32 
 
Following is a brief description of each employee classification: 
 
Staff Accountant – Staff accountants work directly under the constant supervision of the 
auditor-in-charge and, are responsible for the various testing of documents, account 
analysis and any other duties as his/her supervisor believes appropriate.  Minimum 
qualification for a staff accountant is graduation from an accredited university or college with 
a degree in accounting or equivalent. 
 
Senior Accountant – A senior accountant must possess all the qualifications of the staff 
accountant, in addition to being able to draft the necessary reports and financial statements, 
and supervise other staff accountants when necessary. 
 
Managers – A manager must possess the qualifications of the senior accountant, plus be 
able to work without extensive supervision from the auditor-in-charge.  The manager should 
be able to draft audit reports from start to finish and to supervise the audit team, if 
necessary. 
 
Principal – A principal is a partner/director in training.  He has been a manager for several 
years and possesses the technical skills to act as the auditor–in-charge.  A principal has no 
financial interest in the firm. 
 
Partner/Director – The director has extensive governmental auditing experience and acts 
as the auditor-in-charge.  Directors have a financial interest in the firm. 
 
 
 



- 5 - 

Professional Staff Resources (Continued) 
 
Independence – Independence of the public accounting firm, with respect to the audit 
client, is the foundation from which the public gains its trust in the opinion issued by the 
public accounting firm at the end of the audit process.  This independence must be in 
appearance as well as in fact.  The public must perceive that the accounting firm is 
independent of the audit entity to ensure that nothing would compromise the opinion issued 
by the public accounting firm. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 
Accountants, PL is independent of Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District, 
including its elected officials and related parties, at the date of this proposal, as defined by 
the following rules, regulations, and standards: 
 

AuSection 220 – Statements on Auditing Standards issued by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
ET Sections 101 and 102 – Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
Chapter 21A-1, Florida Administrative Code; 
 
Section 473.315, Florida Statutes; and, 
 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

 
On an annual basis, all members of the firm are required to confirm, in writing, that they have no 
personal or financial relationships or holding that would impair their independence with regard to 
the firm’s clients. 
 
Independence is a hallmark of our profession.  We encourage our staff to use professional 
judgment in situations where our independence could be impaired or the perception of a conflict 
of interest might exist.  In the governmental sector, public perception is as important as 
professional standards.  Therefore, the utmost care must be exercised by independent auditors 
in the performance of their duties. 
 
Ability to Furnish the Required Services 
 
As previously noted in the Profile of the Proposer section of this document, our firm has been in 
existence for over 69 years.  We have provided audit services to some clients for over 30 years 
continually.  Our firm is insured against physical loss through commercial insurance and we also 
carry liability insurance.  The majority of our audit documentation is stored electronically, both 
on our office network and on each employee laptop or computer assigned to each specific job.  
Our office computer network is backed up on tape, so in the event of a total equipment loss, we 
can restore all data as soon as replacement equipment is acquired.  In addition, our field laptop 
computers carry the same data and can be used in the event of emergency with virtually no 
delay in completing the required services.   



- 6 - 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES PROVIDED  
 
Arbitrage Rebate Services 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL also provides 
arbitrage rebate compliance and related services to governmental issuers.  The Tax Reform Act 
of 1986 requires issuers of most tax-exempt obligations to pay (i.e., “rebate”) to the United 
States government any arbitrage profits.  Arbitrage profits are earnings on the investment of 
bond proceeds and certain other monies in excess of what would have been earned had such 
monies been invested at a yield equal to the yield on the bonds. 
 
Federal tax law requires that interim rebate calculations and payments are due at the end of 
every fifth bond year.  Final payment is required upon redemption of the bonds.  More frequent 
calculations may be deemed advisable by an issuer’s auditor, trustee or bond counsel or to 
assure that accurate and current records are available.  These more frequent requirements are 
usually contained in the Arbitrage or Rebate Certificate with respect to the bonds. 
 
Our firm performs a comprehensive rebate analysis and includes the following: 
 

• Verifying that the issue is subject to rebate; 
• Calculating the bond yield; 
• Identifying, and separately accounting for, all “Gross Proceeds” (as that term is defined 

in the Code) of the bond issue, including those requiring analysis due to “transferred 
proceeds” and/or “commingled funds” circumstances; 

• Determining what general and/or elective options are available to Gross proceeds of the 
issue; 

• Calculating the issue’s excess investment earning (rebate liability), if any; 
• Delivering appropriate documentation to support all calculations;  
• Providing an executive summary identifying the methodology employed, major 

assumptions, conclusions, and any other recommendations for changes in 
recordkeeping and investment policies; 

• Assisting as necessary in the event of an Internal Revenue Service inquiry; and, 
• Consulting with issue staff, as necessary, regarding arbitrage related matters. 



- 7 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has been 
practicing public accounting in Florida for 69 years.  Our success over the years has been the 
result of a strong commitment to providing personalized quality service to our clients. 
 
The current members of our firm have performed audits of over 900 community development 
districts, and over 1,800 audits of municipalities, counties and other governmental entities such 
as the City of Fort Pierce and St. Lucie County. 
 
Our firm provides a variety of accounting, auditing, tax litigation support, and consulting 
services.  Some of the professional accounting, auditing and management consulting services 
that are provided by our firm are listed below: 
 

• Performance of annual financial and compliance audits, including Single Audits of state 
and federal financial assistance programs, under the provisions of the Single Audit Act, 
Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance), with minimal disruptions to your operations; 

• Performance of special compliance audits to ascertain compliance with the applicable 
local, state and federal laws and regulations; 

• Issuance of comfort letters and consent letters in conjunction with the issuance of tax-
exempt debt obligations, including compiling financial data and interim period financial 
statement reviews; 

• Calculation of estimated and actual federal arbitrage rebates; 
• Assistance in compiling historical financial data for first-time and supplemental 

submissions for GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting; 
• Preparation of indirect cost allocation systems in accordance with Federal and State 

regulatory requirements; 
• Providing human resource and employee benefit consulting; 
• Performance of automation feasibility studies and disaster recovery plans; 
• Performance feasibility studies concerning major fixed asset acquisitions and utility plant 

expansion plans (including electric, water, pollution control, and sanitation utilities); and 
• Assistance in litigation, including testimony in civil and criminal court. 
• Assist clients who utilize QuickBooks software with their software needs.  Our Certified 

QuickBooks Advisor has undergone extensive training through QuickBooks and has 
passed several exams to attain this Certification. 

 
Continuing Professional Education 
 
All members of the governmental audit staff of our firm, and audit team members assigned to 
this engagement, are in compliance with the Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
requirements set forth in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  In addition, our firm is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Florida Statutes that require CPA’s to have met certain CPE requirements prior to proposing on 
governmental audit engagements. 
 
 



- 8 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
The audit team has extensive experience in performing governmental audits and is exposed to 
intensive and continuing concentration on these types of audits.  Due to the total number of 
governmental audits our team performs, each member of our governmental staff must 
understand and be able to perform several types of governmental audits.  It is our objective to 
provide each professional employee fifty hours or more of comprehensive continuing 
professional education each year.  This is accomplished through attending seminars throughout 
Florida and is reinforced through in-house training. 
 
Our firm has made a steadfast commitment to professional education.  Our active attendance 
and participation in continuing professional education is a major part of our objective to obtain 
the most recent knowledge on issues which are of importance to our clients.  We are growing on 
the reputation for work that our firm is providing today. 
 
Quality Control Program 
 
Quality control requires continuing commitment to professional excellence.  Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is formally dedicated to that 
commitment. 
 
To ensure maintaining the standards of working excellence required by our firm, we joined the 
Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA).  To be a participating member firm of this practice section, a firm must 
obtain an independent Peer Review of its quality control policies and procedures to ascertain 
the firm’s compliance with existing auditing standards on the applicable engagements. 
 
The scope of the Peer Review is comprehensive in that it specifically reviews the following 
quality control policies and procedures of the participating firm: 
 

• Professional, economic, and administrative independence; 
• Assignment of professional personnel to engagements; 
• Consultation on technical matters; 
• Supervision of engagement personnel; 
• Hiring and employment of personnel; 
• Professional development; 
• Advancement; 
• Acceptance and continuation of clients; and, 
• Inspection and review system. 

 
We believe that our commitment to the program is rewarding not only to our firm, but primarily to 
our clients. 
 
The external independent Peer Review of the elements of our quality control policies and 
procedures performed by an independent certified public accountant, approved by the PCPS of 
the AICPA, provides you with the assurance that we continue to conform to standards of the 
profession in the conduct of our accounting and auditing practice. 
 



- 9 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Our firm is also a member of Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC), a voluntary 
membership center for CPA firms that perform governmental audits.  This center promotes the 
quality of governmental audits. 
 
Our firm has completed successive Peer Reviews.  These reviews included a representative 
sample of our firm’s local governmental auditing engagements.  As a result of these reviews, 
our firm obtained an unqualified opinion on our quality control program and work procedures.  
On page 31 is a copy of our most recent Peer Review report.  It should be noted that we 
received a pass rating. 
 
Our firm has never had any disciplinary actions by state regulatory bodies or professional 
organizations. 
 
As our firm performs approximately one hundred fifty audits each year that are reviewed by 
federal, state or local entities, we are constantly dealing with questions from these entities about 
our audits.  We are pleased to say that any questions that have been raised were minor issues 
and were easily resolved without re-issuing any reports. 
 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR) 
 
We are proud and honored to have been involved with the City of Fort Pierce and the Fort 
Pierce Utilities Authority when they received their first Certificates of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1988 and 1994, 
respectively.  We were also instrumental in the City of Stuart receiving the award, in our first 
year of performing their audit, for the year ended September 30, 1999.   
 
We also assisted St. Lucie County, Florida for the year ended September 30, 2003, in preparing 
their first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, and St. Lucie County has received their 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting every year since.    
 
As continued commitment to insuring that we are providing the highest level of experience, we 
have had at least one employee of our firm serve on the GFOA – Special Review Committee 
since the mid-1980s.  This committee is made up of selective Certified Public Accountants 
throughout the United States who have demonstrated their high level of knowledge and 
expertise in governmental accounting.  Each committee member attends a special review 
meeting at the Annual GFOA Conference.  At this meeting, the committee reports on the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s most recent results, future goals, and common reporting 
deficiencies. 
 
We feel that our previous experience in assisting the City of Fort Pierce, the Fort Pierce Utilities 
Authority and St. Lucie County obtain their first CAFRs, and the City of Stuart in continuing to 
receive a CAFR and our firm’s continued involvement with the GFOA, and the CAFR review 
committee make us a valued asset for any client in the field of governmental financial reporting. 
 
 
 



- 10 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
References 
 
Terracina Community Development   Gateway Community Development   
    District      District 
Jeff Walker, Special District Services Stephen Bloom, Severn Trent Management 
(561) 630-4922 (954) 753-5841 
 
The Reserve Community Development District Port of the Islands Community Development  
         District 
Darrin Mossing, Governmental Management Cal Teague, Premier District Management  
     Services LLC      
(407) 841-5524 (239) 690-7100 ext 101 
 
In addition to the above, we have the following additional governmental audit experience: 
 
Community Development Districts 
 
Aberdeen Community Development Beacon Lakes Community

 District  Development District

Alta Lakes Community Development Beaumont Community Development
  District    District

Amelia Concourse Community Bella Collina Community Development
Development District    District

Amelia Walk Communnity Bonnet Creek Community 
Development District    Development District

Aqua One Community Development Buckeye Park Community
   District    Development District

Arborwood Community Development Candler Hills East Community 
District Development District

Arlington Ridge Community Cedar Hammock Community
   Development District  Development District

Bartram Springs Community Central Lake Community
   Development District Development District

Baytree Community Development Channing Park Community 
   District  Development District



- 11 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Cheval West Community Evergreen Community Development

 Development District    District

Coconut Cay Community Forest Brooke Community 
    Development District  Development District

Colonial Country Club Community Gateway Services Community
 Development District    Development District

Connerton West Community Gramercy Farms Community
   Development District  Development District

Copperstone Community Greenway Improvement District
   Development District

Creekside @ Twin Creeks Community Greyhawk Landing Community
 Development District    Development District

Deer Run Community Development Griffin Lakes Community Development 
 District District

Dowden West Community Habitat Community Development 
   Development District District

DP1 Community Development Harbor Bay Community Development
   District    District

Eagle Point Community Development Harbourage at Braden River
 District    Community Development District

East Nassau Stewardship District Harmony Community Development 
District

Eastlake Oaks Community
 Development District Harmony West Community  

Development District
Easton Park Community Development 

 District Harrison Ranch Community
Development District

Estancia @ Wiregrass Community
 Development District Hawkstone Community 

Development District
 



- 12 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Heritage Harbor Community Madeira Community Development

Development District District

Heritage Isles Community Marhsall Creek Community
Development District Development District

Heritage Lake Park Community Meadow Pointe IV Community
Development District Development District

Heritage Landing Community Meadow View at Twin Creek 
Development District Community Development District

Heritage Palms Community Mediterra North Community
Development District Development District

Heron Isles Community Midtown Miami Community
Development District Development District

Heron Isles Community Development Mira Lago West Community
District Development District

Highland Meadows II Community Montecito Community 
Development District Development District

Julington Creek Community Narcoossee Community
Development District Development District

Laguna Lakes Community Naturewalk Community 
Development District Development District

Lake Bernadette Community New Port Tampa Bay Community
Development District Development District

Lakeside Plantation Community Overoaks Community Development
Development District District

Landings at Miami Community Panther Trace II Community
Development District Development District

Legends Bay Community Paseo Community Development
Development District District

Lexington Oaks Community Pine Ridge Plantation Community
Development District Development District

Live Oak No. 2 Community Piney Z Community Development
Development District District  



- 13 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)  
 
Poinciana Community Sampson Creek Community

Development District Development District

Poinciana West Community San Simeon Community
Development District Development District

Port of the Islands Community Six Mile Creek Community
Development District Development District

Portofino Isles Community South Village Community
Development District Development District

Quarry Community Development Southern Hills Plantation I
District Community Development District

Renaissance Commons Community Southern Hills Plantation III
Development District Community Development District

Reserve Community South Fork Community
Development District Development District

Reserve #2 Community St. John's Forest Community
Development District Development District

River Glen Community Stoneybrook South Community
Development District Development District

River Hall Community Stoneybrook South at ChampionsGate
Development District Community Development District

River Place on the St. Lucie Stoneybrook West Community
Community Development District Development District

Rivers Edge Community Tern Bay Community
Development District Development District

Riverwood Community Terracina Community Development
Development District District

Riverwood Estates Community Tison's Landing Community
Development District Development District

Rolling Hills Community TPOST Community Development
Development District District

Rolling Oaks Community
Development District  



- 14 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED)  
 
Triple Creek Community Vizcaya in Kendall

Development District Development District

TSR Community Development Waterset North Community
District Development District

Turnbull Creek Community Westside Community Development
Development District District

Twin Creeks North Community WildBlue Community Development
Development District District

Urban Orlando Community Willow Creek Community
Development District Development District

Verano #2 Community Willow Hammock Community
Development District Development District

Viera East Community Winston Trails Community
Development District Development District

VillaMar Community Zephyr Ridge Community
Development District Development District

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 15 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Other Governmental Organizations 
 
City of Westlake 
 
 
Florida Inland Navigation District 
 
Fort Pierce Farms Water Control 
 District 
 
Indian River Regional Crime 
   Laboratory, District 19, Florida 
 
Viera Stewardship District 

 
 
Office of the Medical Examiner, 
   District 19 
 
Rupert J. Smith Law Library  
   of St. Lucie County 
 
St. Lucie Education Foundation 
 
Seminole Improvement District 
 
Troup Indiantown Water  
   Control District 

 
Current or Recent Single Audits, 

 
St. Lucie County, Florida 
Early Learning Coalition, Inc. 
Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 

Gateway Services Community Development 
District

 
Members of our audit team have acquired extensive experience from performing or participating 
in over 2,100 audits of governments, independent special taxing districts, school boards, and 
other agencies that receive public money and utilize fund accounting. 
 
Much of our firm’s auditing experience is with compliance auditing, which is required for publicly 
financed agencies.  In this type of audit, we do a financial examination and also confirm 
compliance with various statutory and regulatory guidelines. 
 
Following is a summary of our other experience, including Auditor General experience, as it 
pertains to other governmental and fund accounting audits. 
 
Counties  
(Includes elected constitutional officers, utilities and dependent taxing districts) 
 
Indian River 
Martin 
Okeechobee 
Palm Beach 
 
Municipalities 
 
City of Port St. Lucie 
City of Vero Beach 
Town of Orchid 



- 16 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Special Districts 
 
Bannon Lakes Community Development District 
Boggy Creek Community Development District 
Capron Trail Community Development District 
Celebration Pointe Community Development District 
Coquina Water Control District 
Diamond Hill Community Development District 
Dovera Community Development District 
Durbin Crossing Community Development District  
Golden Lakes Community Development District 
Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 
Martin Soil and Water Conservation District 
Meadow Pointe III Community Development District 
Myrtle Creek Community Development District 
St. Lucie County – Fort Pierce Fire District 
The Crossings at Fleming Island 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Indian River County Mosquito Control District 
St. John’s Water Control District 
Westchase and Westchase East Community Development Districts 
Pier Park Community Development District 
Verandahs Community Development District 
Magnolia Park Community Development District 
 
Schools and Colleges 
 
Federal Student Aid Programs – Indian River Community College 
Indian River Community College 
Okeechobee County District School Board 
St. Lucie County District School Board 
 
State and County Agencies 
 
Central Florida Foreign-Trade Zone, Inc. (a nonprofit organization affiliated with the St. Lucie     
    County Board of County Commissioners) 
Florida School for Boys at Okeechobee 
Indian River Community College Crime Laboratory 
Indian River Correctional Institution 
 
 



- 17 - 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
We propose the fee for our audit services described below to be $3,175 for the years ended 
September 30, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. The fee is contingent upon the financial 
records and accounting systems of Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
being “audit ready” and the financial activity for the District is not materially increased.  If we 
discover that additional preparation work or subsidiary schedules are needed, we will consult 
with your authorized representative.  We can assist with this additional work at our standard 
rates should you desire. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 
 
If selected as the District's auditors, we will perform a financial and compliance audit in 
accordance with Section 11.45, Florida Statutes, in order to express an opinion on an annual 
basis on the financial statements of Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District as 
of September 30, 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025. The audits will be performed to the extent 
necessary to express an opinion on the fairness in all material respects with which the financial 
statements present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to determine whether, for 
selected transactions, operations are properly conducted in accordance with legal and 
regulatory requirements.  Reportable conditions that are also material weaknesses shall be 
identified as such in the Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters.  Other (non-reportable) conditions discovered during the course 
of the audit will be reported in a separate letter to management, which will be referred to in the 
Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters. 
 
Our audit will be performed in accordance with standards for financial and compliance audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, as well as in compliance with rules and 
regulations of audits of special districts as set forth by the State Auditor General in 
Chapter 10.550, Local Governmental Entity Audits, and other relevant federal, state and county 
orders, statutes, ordinances, charter, resolutions, bond covenants, Administrative Code and 
procedures, or rules and regulations which may pertain to the work required in the engagement. 
 
The primary purpose of our audit will be to express an opinion on the financial statements 
discussed above.  It should be noted that such audits are subject to the inherent risk that errors 
or irregularities may not be detected.  However, if conditions are discovered which lead to the 
belief that material errors, defalcations or other irregularities may exist or if other circumstances 
are encountered that require extended services, we will promptly notify the appropriate 
individual. 
 
 
 



- 18 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP 
Director – 41 years 
 
Education 
♦ Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
♦ Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Affiliate member Government Finance Officers Association 
♦ Past President, Vice President-Campaign Chairman, Vice President and Board Member of 

United Way of St. Lucie County, 1989 - 1994 
♦ Past President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer of the Treasure Coast Chapter of 

the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1988 - 1991 
♦ Past President of Ft. Pierce Kiwanis Club, 1994 - 95, Member/Board Member since 1982 
♦ Past President, Vice President and Treasurer of St. Lucie County Chapter of the American 

Cancer Society, 1980 -1986 
♦ Member of the St. Lucie County Chamber of Commerce, Member Board of Directors, 

Treasurer, September 2002 - 2006, Chairman Elect 2007, Chairman 2008, Past Chairman 
2009  

♦ Member Lawnwood Regional Medical Center Board of Trustees, 2000 – Present, Chairman 
2013 - Present 

♦ Member of St. Lucie County Citizens Budget Committee, 2001 – 2002 
♦ Member of Ft. Pierce Citizens Budget Advisory Committee, 2010 – 2011 
♦ Member of Ft. Pierce Civil Service Appeals Board, 2013 - Present 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Miles Grant Development/Country Club – Stuart, Florida, July 1975 – October 1976 
♦ State Auditor General’s Office – Public Accounts Auditor – November 1976 through 

September 1979 
♦ Director - Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants PL, 

responsible for numerous government and nonprofit audits. 
♦ Over 30 years experience in all phases of public accounting and auditing experience, with a 

concentration in financial and compliance audits.  Mr. Gaines has been involved in all 
phases of the audits listed on the preceding pages. 



- 19 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Director 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors over the last two years to keep abreast of the latest 
developments in accounting and auditing such as: 

Governmental Accounting Report and Audit Update 
Analytical Procedures, FICPA 
Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
Single Audit Sampling and Other Considerations 



- 20 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP 
Accounting and Audit Principal – 18 years 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 4 years 
Staff Accountant  – 11 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of Central Florida, B.A. – Accounting 
♦ Barry University – Master of Professional Accountancy 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
♦ Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
♦ Certified Not-For-Profit Core Concepts 2018 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Associate Member, Florida Government Finance Office Associates 
♦ Assistant Coach – St. Lucie County Youth Football Organization (1994 – 2005) 
♦ Assistant Coach – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2006 – 2010) 
♦ Board Member – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2011 – 2017) 
♦ Treasurer, AIDS Research and Treatment Center of the Treasure Coast, Inc. (2000 – 

2003) 
♦ Board Member/Treasurer, North Treasure Coast Chapter, American Red Cross  

(2004 – 2010) 
♦ Member/Board Member of Port St. Lucie Kiwanis (1994 – 2001) 
♦ President (2014/15) of Sunrise Kiwanis of Fort Pierce (2004 – 2017) 
♦ St. Lucie District School Board Superintendent Search Committee (2013 – present) 
♦ Board Member – Phrozen Pharoes (2019-2021) 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Twenty-eight years public accounting experience with an emphasis on nonprofit and 

governmental organizations.  
♦ Audit Manager in-charge on a variety of audit and review engagements within several 

industries, including the following government and nonprofit organizations: 
  St. Lucie County, Florida 
  19th Circuit Office of Medical Examiner 
  Troup Indiantown Water Control District 
  Exchange Club Center for the Prevention of Child Abuse, Inc. 
  Healthy Kids of St. Lucie County 
  Mustard Seed Ministries of Ft. Pierce, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids - South 
  St. Lucie County Education Foundation, Inc. 
  Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 
  North Springs Improvement District 
♦ Four years of service in the United States Air Force in computer operations, with a top 

secret (SCI/SBI) security clearance. 



- 21 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Principal  
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. McGuire has attended numerous continuing professional education courses and 

seminars taught by nationally recognized sponsors in the accounting auditing and single 
audit compliance areas.  He has attended courses over the last two years in those areas as 
follows: 

  Not-for-Profit Auditing Financial Results and Compliance Requirements 
  Update:  Government Accounting Reporting and Auditing 
  Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
 
 



- 22 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 30 years 
 
Education 
♦ Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
♦ Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
♦ Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Former Member of Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants Committee on State and 

Local Government 
♦ Affiliate Member Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for over 10 years 
♦ Affiliate Member Florida Government Finance Officers Association (FGFOA) for over 10 

years 
♦ Technical Review – 1997 FICPA Course on State and Local Governments in Florida 
♦ Board of Directors – Kiwanis of Ft. Pierce, Treasurer – 1994-1999; Vice President – 1999-

2001 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Twenty-seven years public accounting experience with an emphasis on governmental and 

nonprofit organizations. 
♦ State Auditor General’s Office – West Palm Beach, Staff Auditor, June 1985 to September 

1985 
♦ Accounting and Audit Manager of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 

Accountants PL, responsible for audit and accounting services including governmental and 
not-for-profit audits. 

♦ Over 20 years of public accounting and governmental experience, specializing in 
governmental and nonprofit organizations with concentration in special districts, including 
Community Development Districts which provide services including water and sewer utilities.  
Governmental and non-profit entities served include the following: 

 
Counties: 

  St. Lucie County 
 
  Municipalities: 
  City of Fort Pierce 
  City of Stuart 
 
 



- 23 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Manager 
 
Professional Experience (Continued) 

Special Districts: 
Bluewaters Community Development District 
Country Club of Mount Dora Community Development District 
Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District #1 and #2 
Indigo Community Development District 
North Springs Improvement District 
Renaissance Commons Community Development District 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Stoneybrook Community Development District 
Summerville Community Development District 
Terracina Community Development District 
Thousand Oaks Community Development District 
Tree Island Estates Community Development District 
Valencia Acres Community Development District 

 
Non-Profits: 
The Dunbar Center, Inc. 
Hibiscus Children’s Foundation, Inc. 
Hope Rural School, Inc. 
Maritime and Yachting Museum of Florida, Inc. 
Tykes and Teens, Inc. 
United Way of Martin County, Inc. 
Workforce Development Board of the Treasure Coast, Inc. 
 

♦ While with the Auditor General’s Office he was on the staff for the state audits of the Martin 
County School District and Okeechobee County School District. 

♦ During 1997 he performed a technical review of the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants state CPE course on Audits of State and Local Governments in Florida.  His 
comments were well received by the author and were utilized in future updates to the 
course. 

 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ During the past several years, he has participated in numerous professional development 

training programs sponsored by the AICPA and FICPA, including state conferences on 
special districts and governmental auditing in Florida.  He averages in excess of 100 hours 
bi-annually of advanced training which exceeds the 80 hours required in accordance with the 
continuing professional education requirements of the Florida State Board of accountancy 
and the AICPA Private Companies Practice Section.  He has over 75 hours of governmental 
CPE credit within the past two years. 

 
 



- 24 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Matthew Gonano, CPA 
Senior Staff Accountant – 10 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of North Florida, B.B.A. – Accounting 
♦ University of Alicante, Spain – International Business 
♦ Florida Atlantic University – Masters of Accounting 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 
♦ American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
♦ Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 
Professional Experience 
 
♦ Senior Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
♦ Performed audits of nonprofit and governmental organizations in accordance with 

Governmental Accounting Auditing Standards (GAAS) 
♦ Performed Single Audits of nonprofit organizations in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, 

Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
 

Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Gonano has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses. 



- 25 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Paul Daly 
Staff Accountant – 9 years 
 
Education 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.S. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Working to attain the requirements to take the Certified Public Accounting (CPA) exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 26 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Melissa Marlin 
Senior Staff Accountant – 7 years 
 
Education 
♦ Indian River State College, A.A. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mrs. Marlin participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Mrs. Marlin is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 

 
 



- 27 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Bryan Snyder 
Staff Accountant – 5 years 
 
Education 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Accountant beginning his professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, 

& Frank. 
♦ Mr. Snyder is gaining experience auditing governmental & nonprofit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Snyder participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on working to 

acquire his CPA certificate. 
♦ Mr. Snyder is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 

 
 



- 28 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Maritza Stonebraker 
Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
♦ Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff Accountant beginning her professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, 

Gaines, & Frank. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mrs. Stonebraker participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on 

acquiring her CPA. 
♦ Mrs. Stonebraker is currently studying to pass the CPA exam. 



- 29 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Jonathan Herman, CPA 
Senior Staff Accountant – 7 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of Central Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, MACC  
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Accounting graduate with five years experience with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & 

Frank providing professional services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Herman participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 



- 30 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Sean Stanton, CPA 
Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
♦ University of South Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
♦ Florida Atlantic University, M.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦ Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank auditing governmental and 

non-profit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Stanton participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 31 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Taylor Nuccio 
Staff Accountant – 3 years 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Ms. Nuccio participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Ms. Nuccio is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 32 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Kirk Vasser 
Staff Accountant – 1 year 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Mr. Vasser participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Mr. Vasser is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 33 - 
 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Madison Ballash 
Staff Accountant – 1 year 
 
Education 
♦   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting (May 2020) 
 
Professional Experience 
♦    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
♦ Ms. Ballash participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
♦ Ms. Ballash is currently working towards completing an additional 30 hours of education to 

qualify to sit for CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 34 - 
 

 
 

 
 



- 35 - 
 

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
Annual Audit Services for Fiscal Year 2021 

Clay County, Florida 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO PROPOSERS 
 
  SECTION 1. DUE DATE. An electronic copy of the proposal must be received no later 
than Thursday, April 29, 2021, 5:00 p.m. at the e-mail address of the District Recording 
Secretary Sarah Sweeting, ssweeting@gmsnf.com.  
 
  SECTION 2. FAMILIARITY WITH THE LAW. By submitting a proposal, the Proposer is 
assumed to be familiar with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
that in any manner affect the work. Ignorance on the part of the Proposer will in no way relieve it 
from responsibility to perform the work covered by the proposal in compliance with al such laws, 
ordinances and regulations.  
 
  SECTION 3. QUALIFICATIONS OF PROPOSER. The contract, if awarded, will only be 
awarded to a responsible Proposer who is qualified by experience and licensing to do the work 
specified herein. The Proposer shall submit with its proposal satisfactory evidence of experience 
in similar work and show that it is fully prepared to complete the work to the satisfaction of the 
District.  
 
  SECTION 4. SUBMISSION OF ONLY ONE PROPOSAL. Proposers shall be 
disqualified and their proposals rejected if the District has reason to believe that collusion may 
exist among the Proposers, the Proposer has defaulted on any previous contract or is in arrears 
on any previous or existing contract, or for failure to demonstrate proper licensure and business 
organization.  
 
  SECTION 5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL. Submit an electronic copy of the Proposal 
Documents, and other requested attachments at the time and e-mail address indicated herein, 
which shall include the subject line, “Auditing Services - Pine Ridge Plantation Community 
Development District”.  
 
  SECTION 6. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL. Proposals may be modified or 
withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed and delivered to the e�mail address 
where proposals are to be submitted at any time prior to the time and date the proposals are 
due. No proposal may be withdrawn after opening for a period of ninety (90) days.  
 
  SECTION 7. PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS. The proposal documents shall consist of the 
notice announcing the request for proposals, these instructions, the Evaluation Criteria Sheet 
and a proposal with all required documentation pursuant to Section 12 of these instructions (the 
“Proposal Documents”).  
 
  SECTION 8. PROPOSAL. In making its proposal, each Proposer represents that it has 
read and understands the Proposal Documents and that the proposal is made in accordance 
therewith.  
 
   
 

mailto:ssweeting@gmsnf.com


- 36 - 
 

  SECTION 9. BASIS OF AWARD/RIGHT TO REJECT. The District reserves the right to 
reject any and all proposals, make modifications to the work, and waive any informalities or 
irregularities in proposals as it is deemed in the best interests of the District.  
 
  SECTION 10. CONTRACT AWARD. Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Notice of 
Award from the District, the Proposer shall enter into and execute a Contract (engagement 
letter) with the District.  
 
  SECTION 11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Nothing herein shall be construed as or 
constitute a wavier of District’s limited waiver of liability contained in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or any other statute or law.  
 
  SECTION 12. MISCELLANEOUS. All proposals shall include the following information in 
addition to any other requirements of the proposal documents.  
 

A. List position or title of all personnel to perform work on the District audit. Include 
resumes for each person listed: list years of experience in present position for each party 
listed and years of related experience.  
 

B. Describe proposed staffing levels, including resumes with applicable certifications.  
 

C. Three references from projects of similar size and scope. The Proposer should include 
information relating to the work it conducted for each reference as well as a name, 
address and phone number of a contact person.  
 

D. The lump sum cost of the provision of the services under the proposal.  
 
  SECTION 13. PROTESTS. Any protest regarding the Proposal Documents, must be 
filed in writing, at the offices of the District Manager, GMS, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 
114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092, within seventy-two (72) hours after the receipt of the 
proposed project plans and specifications or other contract documents. The formal protest 
setting forth with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based shall be filed 
within seven (7) calendar days after the initial notice of protest was filed. Failure to timely file a 
notice of protest or failure to timely file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of any 
right to object or protest with respect to aforesaid plans, specifications or contract documents.  
 
  SECTION 14. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS. The criteria to be used in the evaluation 
of proposals are presented in the Evaluation Criteria Sheet, contained within the Proposal 
Documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 37 - 
 

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION CDD 
AUDITOR SELECTION 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
 
 
1. Ability of Personnel.   (20 Points)  
 
(E.g., geographic locations of the firm’s headquarters or permanent office in relation to the 
project; capabilities and experience of key personnel; present ability to manage this project; 
evaluation of existing work load; proposed staffing levels, etc.)  
 
2. Proposer’s Experience.   (20 Points)  
 
(E.g. past record and experience of the Proposer in similar projects; volume of work previously 
performed by the firm; past performance for other Community Development Districts in other 
contracts; character, integrity, reputation, or respondent, etc.)  
 
3. Understanding of Scope of Work.   (20 Points)  
 
Extent to which the proposal demonstrates an understanding of the District’s needs for the 
services requested.  
 
4. Ability to Furnish the Required Services.   (20 Points)  
 
Extent to which the proposal demonstrates the adequacy of Proposer’s financial resources and 
stability as a business entity necessary to complete the services required. (E.g., the existence of 
any natural disaster plan for business operations.)  
 
5. Price.    (20 Points)  
 
Points will be awarded based upon the price bid for the rendering of the services and 
reasonableness of the price to the services. 



    

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
  
 
 

Proposal to Provide 
Financial Auditing 

Services: 
 

PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

Proposal Due: April 29, 2021  
5:00PM 
 
Submitted to: 
Pine Ridge Plantation  
Community Development District 
c/o District Recording Secretary  
Sarah Sweeting  
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092                                                            

 
Submitted by: 
Antonio J. Grau, Partner 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Tel  (561) 994-9299 

(800) 229-4728 
Fax  (561) 994-5823 
tgrau@graucpa.com  
www.graucpa.com 
 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
http://www.graucpa.com/


 

    

   
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Table of Contents                                                                         Page 

  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TRANSMITTAL LETTER .................................................................................. 1 

FIRM QUALIFICATIONS..........................................................................................................................................3 

FIRM & STAFF EXPERIENCE ............................................................................................................................. 6 

REFERENCES……………….. ................................................................................................................................ 11 

SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH.......................................................................................................................... 13 

COST OF SERVICES ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ................................................................................................................. 19 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

    

 
 
 
 
April 29, 2021 
 

Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
c/o District Recording Secretary Sarah Sweeting  
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092   
 
Re: Request for Proposal for Professional Auditing Services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 

2021, with an option for four (4) additional annual renewals. 
 

 Grau & Associates (Grau) welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 
Development District’s (the “District”) Request for Proposal (RFP), and we look forward to working with 
you on your audit. We are an energetic and robust team of knowledgeable professionals and are a 
recognized leader of providing services to Community Development Districts. As one of Florida’s few firms 
to primarily focus on government, we are especially equipped to provide you an effective and efficient audit.  

 
 Special district audits are at the core of our practice: we have a total of 360 clients, 329 or 91% of which 

are special districts. We know the specifics of the professional services and work products needed to meet 
your RFP requirements like no other firm. With this level of experience, we are able to increase efficiency, 
to provide immediate and continued savings, and to minimize disturbances to client operations. 

 
 Why Grau & Associates: 
 

Knowledgeable Audit Team  
Grau is proud that the personnel we assign to your audit are some of the most seasoned auditors in the 
field. Our staff performs governmental engagements year round. When not working on your audit, your 
team is refining their audit approach for next year’s audit. Our engagement partners have decades of 
experience and take a hands-on approach to our assignments, which all ensures a smoother process for 
you.  
 
Servicing your Individual Needs 
Our clients enjoy personalized service designed to satisfy their unique needs and requirements. 
Throughout the process of our audit, you will find that we welcome working with you to resolve any issues 
as swiftly and easily as possible. In addition, due to Grau’s very low turnover rate for our industry, you 
also won’t have to worry about retraining your auditors from year to year. 
 
Developing Relationships 
We strive to foster mutually beneficial relationships with our clients. We stay in touch year round, 
updating, collaborating and assisting you in implementing new legislation, rules and standards that affect 
your organization. We are also available as a sounding board and assist with technical questions.  
 
Maintaining an Impeccable Reputation 
We have never been involved in any litigation, proceeding or received any disciplinary action. 
Additionally, we have never been charged with, or convicted of, a public entity crime of any sort. We are 
financially stable and have never been involved in any bankruptcy proceedings. 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

Complying With Standards 
Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules of the Auditor General of 
the State of Florida, and any other applicable federal, state and local regulations. We will deliver our 
reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
 This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for 90 days. We certify this proposal is made without previous 

understanding, agreement or connection either with any previous firms or corporations offering a proposal 
for the same items. We also certify our proposal is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, 
fraud, or otherwise illegal action, and was prepared in good faith. Only the person(s), company or parties 
interested in the project as principals are named in the proposal. Grau has no existing or potential conflicts, 
and anticipates no conflicts during the engagement. Our Federal I.D. number is 20-2067322. 

 
 We would be happy to answer any questions or to provide any additional information. We are genuinely 

excited about the prospect of serving you and establishing a long-term relationship. Please do not hesitate 
to call or email either of our Partners, Antonio J. Grau, CPA (tgrau@graucpa.com) or Racquel McIntosh, CPA 
(rmcintosh@graucpa.com) at 561.994.9299. We thank you for considering our firm’s qualifications and 
experience. 

 
Very truly yours, 
Grau & Associates 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Antonio J. Grau

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

3 

 

 

 

 
 

Firm Qualifications 
 
 



 

 
4 

Grau’s Focus and Experience 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Community Development 
Districts Served 

Properly registered 
and  
licensed professional 
corporation by the 
state of FLORIDA 

Year founded 

Our Team 

3 
Partners 

10 
Professional  

Staff 

2 
Administrative 
Professionals 

 

⇒ External quality review 
program: consistently 
receives a pass 

⇒ Internal: ongoing 
monitoring to maintain 
quality 

9 
Professional 

Groups 

AICPA | FICPA | GFOA | FASD | FGFOA 
 

We are proud Members of 
the American Institute of 

Certified Public 
Accountants 

& 
the Florida Institute of 

Certified Public 
Accountants 

 

297  
 

9/13 
 Auditors are 

CPAS 

Services Provided 

See next page for 
report and certificate 



 

 
5 

 
 
 



 

 
6 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Firm & Staff Experience 

 



 

 
7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PFM
12

GMS
78

MERITUS
23RIZZETTA

47
SDS
60

INFRAMARK
38

WRATHELL
30

OTHER
19

GRAU AND ASSOCIATES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EXPERIENCE 

BY MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Racquel McIntosh, CPA 
(Partner) 
Years Performing 
Audits: 14+ 
CPE (last 2 years): 
Government 
Accounting, Auditing: 
47 hours; Accounting, 
Auditing and Other:  
58 hours 
Professional 
Memberships: AICPA, 
FICPA, FGFOA, FASD 
 

Antonio J GRAU, CPA  
(Partner) 
Years Performing  
Audits: 30+ 
CPE (last 2 years):  
Government  
Accounting, Auditing:  
24 hours; Accounting,  
Auditing and Other:  
56 hours 
Professional  
Memberships: AICPA,  
FICPA, FGFOA, GFOA 
 

“Here at Grau  & Associates, staying up to date with the 
current technological landscape is one of our top 
priorities. Not only does it provide a more positive 
experience for our clients, but it also allows us to perform 
a more effective and efficient audit.  With the every 
changing technology available and utilized by our clients, 
we are constantly innovating our audit process.” 

- Tony Grau 

“Quality audits and exceptional client service are at the 
heart of every decision we make. Our clients trust us to 
deliver a quality audit, adhering to high standards and 

assisting them with improvements for their 
organization.” 

-Racquel McIntosh 

Profile Briefs: 



 

 
8 

YOUR ENGAGEMENT TEAM 
 

Grau’s client-specific engagement team is meticulously organized in order to meet the unique 
needs of each client.  Constant communication within our solution team allows for continuity of 

staff and audit team. 
 
 Grau contracts with an 

outside group of IT 
management consultants to 
assist with matters 
including, but not limited to; 
network and database 
security, internet security 
and vulnerability testing. 
 

The Engagement Partner will 
participate extensively during 
the various stages of the 
engagement and has direct 
responsibility for engagement 
policy, direction, supervision, 
quality control, security, 
confidentiality of information 
of the engagement and 
communication with client 
personnel. The engagement 
partner will also be involved 
directing the development of 
the overall audit approach 
and plan; performing an 
overriding review of work 
papers and ascertain client 
satisfaction. 

The assigned personnel will 
work closely with the partner 
and the District to ensure that 
the financial statements and all 
other reports are prepared in 
accordance with professional 
standards and firm policy. 
Responsibilities will include 
planning the audit; 
communicating with the client 
and the partners the progress 
of the audit; and 
determining that financial 
statements and all reports 
issued by the firm  are accurate, 
complete and are prepared in 
accordance with professional 
standards and firm policy. 
 

An advisory consultant will 
be available as a sounding 
board to advise in those 
areas where problems are 
encountered.  
 
 



 

 
9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Clients Served (partial list) 

 
Professional Associations/Memberships 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants    Florida Government Finance Officers Association 
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants      Government Finance Officers Association Member 
City of Boca Raton Financial Advisory Board Member 

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 

 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing     24 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other      56  
          Total Hours     80 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

 
 

(>300) Various Special Districts, including:  
 

 Bayside Improvement Community Development District 
 Dunes  Community Development District 
 Fishhawk Community Development District (I,II,IV) 
 Grand Bay at Doral  Community Development District 
 Heritage Harbor North Community Development District 
 

St. Lucie West Services District  
Ave Maria Stewardship Community District 
Rivers Edge II  Community Development District 
Bartram Park  Community Development District 
Bay Laurel Center  Community Development District 

 Boca Raton Airport Authority 
 Greater Naples Fire Rescue District 
 Key Largo Wastewater Treatment District 
 Lake Worth Drainage District 
 South Indian River Water Control 

 

Antonio ‘Tony ‘ J. Grau, CPA 
Partner 

Contact: tgrau@graucpa.com | (561) 939-6672 
Experience 
For over 30 years, Tony has been providing audit, accounting 
and consulting services to the firm’s governmental, non-profit, 
employee benefit, overhead and arbitrage clients. He provides 
guidance to clients regarding complex accounting issues, 
internal controls and operations.  
As a member of the Government Finance Officers Association 
Special Review Committee, Tony participated in the review 
process for awarding the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in 
Financial Reporting. Tony was also the review team leader for 
the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of 
School Board of Miami-Dade County. Tony received the AICPA 
advanced level certificate for governmental single audits.  
 
Education 

University of South Florida (1983) 
 Bachelor of Arts 
 Business Administration 

 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com


 

 
10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Clients Served (partial list) 

 Professional Associations/ Memberships 

 
  Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 
 
 
 
 
  

(>300) Various Special Districts, including: 
 

 

Carlton Lakes  Community Development District 
Golden Lakes  Community Development District 
Rivercrest  Community Development District 
South Fork III  Community Development District 
TPOST  Community Development District 

Westchase  Community Development District 
Monterra  Community Development District 
Palm Coast Park  Community Development District 
Long Leaf  Community Development District 
Watergrass  Community Development District  
 

East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
Indian Trail Improvement District 
Pinellas Park Water Management District 
Ranger Drainage District 
South Trail Fire Protection and Rescue Service District 

 

 
 

  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA State & Local Government Committee 
  Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants   FGFOA Palm Beach Chapter 
    

Course Hours 
Government Accounting and Auditing 47 
Accounting, Auditing and Other  58 

      Total Hours  105 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

 
Racquel C. McIntosh, CPA 

Partner 
Contact : rmcintosh@graucpa.com | (561) 939-6669 

Experience 
Racquel has been providing government audit, accounting and 
advisory services to our clients for over 14 years. She serves as 
the firm’s quality control partner; in this capacity she closely 
monitors engagement quality ensuring standards are followed 
and maintained throughout the audit.  
Racquel develops in-house training seminars on current 
government auditing, accounting, and legislative topics and also 
provides seminars for various government organizations. In 
addition, she assists clients with implementing new accounting 
software, legislation, and standards. 
 
 Education 

Florida Atlantic University (2004) 
Master of Accounting 
Florida Atlantic University (2003) 
Bachelor of Arts:  
Finance, Accounting 

 

mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

11 

 
 

 

 

 

 
References 

 
 



 

 
12 

We have included three references of government engagements that require compliance with laws 
and regulations, follow fund accounting, and have financing requirements, which we believe are 
similar to the District. 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Dunes Community Development District  
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 1998 
Client Contact Darrin Mossing, Finance Director 

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
904-940-5850 

Two Creeks Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2007 
Client Contact William Rizzetta, President 

3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200 
Tampa, Florida 33614 
813-933-5571 

Journey’s End Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2004 
Client Contact Todd Wodraska, Vice President 

2501 A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
561-630-4922 



 

13 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Specific Audit  
Approach 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
14 

AUDIT APPROACH 
 
Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services: 
We recognize the District is an important entity and we are confident our firm is eminently qualified 
to meet the challenges of this engagement and deliver quality audit services. You would be a valued 
client of our firm and we pledge to commit  all  firm resources to provide the level and quality of 
services (as described below) which not only meet the requirements set forth in the RFP but will 
exceed those expectations. Grau & Associates fully understands the scope of professional services and 
work products requested. Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and 
the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and any other applicable Federal, State of Local 
regulations. We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
Proposed segmentation of the engagement 
Our approach to the audit engagement is a risk-based approach which integrates the best of traditional 
auditing techniques and a total systems concept to enable the team to conduct a more efficient and 
effective audit. The audit will be conducted in three phases, which are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Phase I - Preliminary Planning 
 
A thorough understanding of your organization, service objectives and operating environment is 
essential for the development of an audit plan and for an efficient, cost-effective audit.  During this 
phase, we will meet with appropriate personnel to obtain and document our understanding of your 
operations and service objectives and, at the same time, give you the opportunity to express your 
expectations with respect to the services that we will provide.  Our work effort will be coordinated so 
that there will be minimal disruption to your staff.  

 
During this phase we will perform the following activities:  

» Review the regulatory, statutory and compliance requirements. This will include a review of 
applicable federal and state statutes, resolutions, bond documents, contracts, and other 
agreements; 

» Read minutes of meetings; 
» Review major sources of information such as budgets, organization charts, procedures, 

manuals, financial systems, and management information systems; 
» Obtain an understanding of fraud detection and prevention systems; 
» Obtain and document an understanding of internal control, including knowledge about the 

design of relevant policies, procedures, and records, and whether they have been placed in 
operation;   

» Assess risk and determine what controls we are to rely upon and what tests we are going to 
perform and perform test of controls; 

» Develop audit programs to incorporate the consideration of financial statement assertions, 
specific audit objectives, and appropriate audit procedures to achieve the specified objectives; 

» Discuss and resolve any accounting, auditing and reporting matters which have been 
identified. 

  

PHASE III: 
Completion and 

Delivery 

PHASE II: 
Execution of the 

Audit Plan 

PHASE I: 
Preliminary 

Planning 



 

 
15 

Phase II – Execution of Audit Plan 
 

The audit team will complete a major portion of transaction testing and audit requirements during this 
phase.  The procedures performed during this period will enable us to identify any matter that may 
impact the completion of our work or require the attention of management.  Tasks to be performed in 
Phase II include, but are not limited to the following: 

» Apply analytical procedures to further assist in the determination of the nature, timing, and 
extent of auditing procedures used to obtain evidential matter for specific account balances or 
classes of transactions; 

» Perform tests of account balances and transactions through sampling, vouching, confirmation 
and other analytical procedures; and 

» Perform tests of compliance. 
 
Phase III - Completion and Delivery 

 
In this phase of the audit, we will complete the tasks related to year-end balances and financial 
reporting. All reports will be reviewed with management before issuance, and the partners will be 
available to meet and discuss our report and address any questions. Tasks to be performed in Phase 
III include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
» Perform final analytical procedures; 
» Review information and make inquiries for subsequent events; and 
» Meeting with Management to discuss preparation of draft financial statements and any 

potential findings or recommendations. 
 

You should expect more from your accounting firm than a signature in your annual financial report. 
Our concept of truly responsive professional service emphasizes taking an active interest in the issues 
of concern to our clients and serving as an effective resource in dealing with those issues. In following 
this approach, we not only audit financial information with hindsight but also consider the foresight 
you apply in managing operations. 
 
Application of this approach in developing our management letter is particularly important given the 
increasing financial pressures and public scrutiny facing today’s public officials.  We will prepare the 
management letter at the completion of our final procedures. 

 
In preparing this management letter, we will initially review any draft comments or recommendations 
with management. In addition, we will take necessary steps to ensure that matters are communicated 
to those charged with governance. 
 
In addition to communicating any recommendations, we will also communicate the following, if any: 
 

» Significant audit adjustments; 
» Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses; 
» Disagreements with management; and 
» Difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 

  



 

 
16 

Our findings will contain a statement of condition describing the situation and the area that needs 
strengthening, what should be corrected and why. Our suggestions will withstand the basic tests of 
corrective action: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To assure full agreement with facts and circumstances, we will fully discuss each item with 
Management prior to the final exit conference. This policy means there will be no “surprises” in the 
management letter and fosters a professional, cooperative atmosphere. 
 
Communications 
We emphasize a continuous, year-round dialogue between the District and our management team. We 
regularly communicate through personal telephone calls and electronic mail throughout the audit and 
on a regular basis.  
Our clients have the ability to transmit information to us on our secure client portal with the ability to 
assign different staff with separate log on and viewing capability.  This further facilitates efficiency as 
all assigned users receive electronic mail notification as soon as new information has been posted into 
the portal.    
 
 

Is the recommendation cost effective? 
 
Is the recommendation the simplest to effectuate in 
order to correct a problem? 
 
Is the recommendation at the heart of the problem 
and not just correcting a symptomatic matter? 
 
Is the corrective action taking into account why the 
deficiency occurred? 



 

17 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Cost of Services 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
18 

Our proposed all-inclusive fees for the financial audit for the fiscal years ended September 30, 
2021-2025 are as follows: 
 
 

Year Ended September 30,  Fee 

2021  $3,200 

2022  $3,300 

2023  $3,400 

2024  $3,500 

2025  $3,600 

TOTAL (2021-2025)  $17,000 
 
The above fees are based on the assumption that the District maintains its current level of 
operations. Should conditions change or additional Bonds are issued the fees would be adjusted 
accordingly upon approval from all parties concerned. 

 



 

19 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 Supplemental Information 
 
 

 



 

 
20 

PARTIAL LIST OF CLIENTS 
 

 

  
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

 

Boca Raton Airport Authority      9/30 
Captain's Key Dependent District       9/30 
Central Broward Water Control District       9/30 
Collier Mosquito Control District       9/30 
Coquina Water Control District       9/30 
East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility       9/30 
Florida Green Finance Authority        9/30 
Greater Boca Raton Beach and Park District       9/30 
Greater Naples Fire Control and Rescue District      9/30 
Green Corridor P.A.C.E. District       9/30 
Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District         9/30 
Indian River Mosquito Control District        9/30 
Indian Trail Improvement District       9/30 
Key Largo Waste Water Treatment District     9/30 
Lake Padgett Estates Independent District       9/30 
Lake Worth Drainage District        9/30 
Lealman Special Fire Control District       9/30 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District        9/30 
Old Plantation Control District       9/30 
Pal Mar Water Control District       9/30 
Pinellas Park Water Management District       9/30 
Pine Tree Water Control District (Broward)       9/30 
Pinetree Water Control District (Wellington)        9/30 
Ranger Drainage District      9/30 
Renaissance Improvement District       9/30 
San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District       9/30 
Sanibel Fire and Rescue District       9/30 
South Central Regional Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Board       9/30 
South-Dade Venture Development District       9/30 
South Indian River Water Control District      9/30 
South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue District       9/30 
Spring Lake Improvement District       9/30 
St. Lucie West Services District      9/30 
Sunshine Water Control District       9/30 
West Villages Improvement District       9/30 
Various Community Development Districts (297)       9/30 

TOTAL 333 5 3 328   

  



 

 
21 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

CONSULTING / MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES 
 
Grau & Associates also provide a broad range of other management consulting services.  Our 
expertise has been consistently utilized by Governmental and Non-Profit entities throughout 
Florida.  Examples of engagements performed are as follows: 
 
• Accounting systems 
• Development of budgets 
• Organizational structures 
• Financing alternatives 
• IT Auditing 
 

• Fixed asset records 
• Cost reimbursement  
• Indirect cost allocation 
• Grant administration and compliance 
 

 
ARBITRAGE 

 
The federal government has imposed complex rules to restrict the use 
of tax-exempt financing. Their principal purpose is to eliminate any 
significant arbitrage incentives in a tax-exempt issue. We have 
determined the applicability of these requirements and performed the 
rebate calculations for more than 150 bond issues, including both 
fixed and variable rate bonds.  
 
 
 
 

We look forward to providing Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development 
District with our resources and experience to accomplish not only those 
minimum requirements set forth in your Request for Proposal, but to exceed 
those expectations! 

 
 

For even more information on Grau & Associates  
please visit us on www.graucpa.com. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Current 
Arbitrage 
Calculations 

73 

http://www.graucpa.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

RESOLUTION 2021-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE PINE RIDGE 
PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING PROPOSED 
BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING 
AND PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors (“Board”) of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District (“District”) 
prior to June 15, 2021, proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning 
October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022 (“Fiscal Year 2021/2022”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget and desires to set the 
required public hearing thereon.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:  

 
1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED.  The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 

Manager for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the basis 
for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget.  

 
2. SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing on said approved Proposed 

Budget is hereby declared and set as follows:  
 

DATE:   _________________________, 2021 
 
 HOUR:   _________________________ 

 
  LOCATION:   ___________________ 
     ___________________ 
     ___________________ 

 
3. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 

GOVERNMENTS.  The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the Proposed 
Budget to Clay County at least 60 days prior to the hearing set above.  

 
4. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET.  In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida 

Statutes, the District’s Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget on 
the District’s website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 2, 
and shall remain on the website for at least 45 days.  

 



 

5. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE.  Notice of this public hearing shall be published in the 
manner prescribed in Florida law.  

 
6. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 

of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 24TH DAY OF MAY, 2021.  
 

ATTEST:      PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY  
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________   By:___________________________ 
Secretary      Its:____________________________  
 



Proposed Budget
Fiscal Year 2022

Pine Ridge Plantation Community
Development District

May 24, 2021



Pine Ridge
Community Development District

Summary Revenues and Expenditures Page 1-2

Narrative – Administrative and Maintenance Page 3-10

2020 A1 and A2 Debt Service Fund Page 11-13

Capital Reserve Page 14

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2021 As of 4/30/2021 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/21 Budget FY2022

Revenues

Assessments $538,283 $534,536 $3,747 $538,283 $538,283
Misc. Income/Facility Rental $3,000 $2,500 $1,200 $3,700 $3,000
Interest Earned $5,000 $568 $200 $768 $600
Carry Forward Surplus $30,511 $0 $0 $0 $43,187

Total Revenues $576,794 $537,604 $5,147 $542,751 $585,070

Expenditures

Administrative

Supervisors Fees & FICA $10,334 $5,383 $3,230 $8,612 $10,334
Engineering $7,000 $123 $6,878 $7,000 $7,000
Attorney $20,000 $2,726 $17,274 $20,000 $20,000
Annual Audit $3,100 $0 $3,100 $3,100 $3,100
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $0 $5,260 $5,260
Arbitrage $1,200 $0 $1,200 $1,200 $1,200
Trustee $6,000 $0 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000
Dissemination $5,000 $2,917 $2,083 $5,000 $5,000
Management Fees $44,290 $25,836 $18,454 $44,290 $46,505
Information Technology $1,000 $583 $417 $1,000 $1,200
Telephone $350 $158 $192 $350 $350
Postage $1,000 $376 $624 $1,000 $1,000
Printing & Binding $1,200 $474 $726 $1,200 $1,200
Insurance $8,390 $8,009 $0 $8,009 $8,810
Legal Advertising $2,500 $513 $1,987 $2,500 $2,500
Other Current Charges $600 $155 $220 $375 $600
Website Maintenance $1,200 $700 $500 $1,200 $1,200
Office Supplies $300 $85 $40 $125 $300
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $0 $175 $175

Administrative Expenses $118,899 $53,471 $62,925 $116,396 $121,734

Amenity Center

Insurance $9,911 $9,911 $0 $9,911 $10,902
General Facility Maintenance $15,000 $6,429 $8,571 $15,000 $15,000
Repairs & Replacements $15,000 $10,157 $4,843 $15,000 $15,000
Recreational Passes $500 $1,897 $0 $1,897 $500
Postage $100 $0 $0 $0 $100
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $0 $0 $0 $125
Office Supplies $700 $0 $700 $700 $700
Other Current Charges $250 $0 $0 $0 $250
Permit Fees $250 $0 $0 $0 $250
Contingency $5,000 $459 $0 $459 $5,000
Special Events $12,000 $7,946 $4,054 $12,000 $12,000
Refuse Service $6,816 $4,058 $3,000 $7,058 $7,200
Security $10,000 $2,570 $3,430 $6,000 $10,000
Gate Monitor $5,700 $0 $5,700 $5,700 $6,146

1



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District General Fund

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2021 As of 4/30/2021 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/21 Budget FY2022

Utilities
   Water & Sewer $3,700 $2,099 $1,525 $3,624 $4,500
   Electric $23,000 $11,119 $8,671 $19,790 $23,000
   Cable/Phone/Internet $3,300 $2,057 $1,550 $3,607 $3,720
Management Contracts
   Amenity Management $54,549 $31,820 $22,729 $54,549 $57,277
   Facility Assistant $18,561 $588 $7,813 $8,400 $19,489
   Field Management Services $21,321 $12,437 $8,884 $21,321 $22,388
   Lifeguards $16,500 $946 $15,554 $16,500 $17,790
   Pool Maintenance $12,500 $7,292 $5,209 $12,500 $12,500
   Pool Chemicals $12,306 $7,179 $5,128 $12,306 $12,306
   Janitorial Service $7,740 $4,515 $3,225 $7,740 $8,127
   Janitorial Supplies $3,200 $594 $2,606 $3,200 $3,200

Amenity Center Expenses $258,029 $124,072 $113,190 $237,262 $267,470

Grounds Maintenance

Landscape Maintenance $100,000 $50,874 $49,126 $100,000 $100,000
Lake Maintenance $9,300 $5,290 $3,850 $9,140 $9,300
Electric $2,500 $826 $754 $1,580 $2,500
Water $39,000 $8,752 $13,248 $22,000 $35,000
Repairs and Maintenance $20,000 $7,362 $10,638 $18,000 $20,000
Contingencies $4,451 $0 $4,451 $4,451 $4,451

Grounds Maintenance Expenses $175,251 $73,105 $82,066 $155,171 $171,251

Capital Reserve $24,614 $24,614 $0 $24,614 $24,614

Total Expenses $576,794 $275,261 $258,182 $533,443 $585,070

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENSES) $0 $262,343 ($253,035) $9,308 $0

FY2021 FY2022
Units 737 737

Gross Assess per Unit $777 $777
Net Assess per Unit $730 $730

Total Gross Assessment $572,642 $572,642
Less: Discounts & Collections (6%) ($34,358) ($34,359)

Total Net Assessment ** $538,283 $538,283

2



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

REVENUES: 

Maintenance Assessments 

The District will levy a Non-Ad Valorem assessment on all the platted lots within the District to pay all of the 
operating expenses for the Fiscal Year in accordance with the adopted budget. 

Misc. Income/Facility Rental Fees 

Includes replacement key deposits and income from residents for rental of facilities for personal use. 

Interest Earned 

Maintenance Assessment income of the District will be invested in accordance with Florida Statutes and 
the investment guidelines approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

EXPENDITURES: 

Administrative: 

Supervisor Fees/FICA 

The Florida Statutes allows each board member to receive $200 per meeting not to exceed $4,800 in one 
year.  The amount for the fiscal year is based upon all five supervisors attending the estimated 12 annual 
meetings.  The FICA represents the Employer’s share of Social Security and Medicare taxes withheld from 
Board of Supervisors checks. 

Engineering 

The District's engineering firm, England, Thims & Miller, Inc., will be providing general engineering services 
to the District, including attendance and preparation for monthly board meetings, review invoices, etc. 

Attorney 

The District's legal counsel, Hopping Green & Sams, will be providing general legal services to the District, 
including attendance and preparation for monthly meetings, preparation and review of agreements, 
resolutions, etc. 

Annual Audit 

The District is required annually to conduct an audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified 
Public Accounting Firm. 

Assessment Roll 

The District contracts with Governmental Management Services, LLC for the certifications of the District’s 
annual maintenance and debt service assessments to the County Tax Collector and collection of Direct 
Assessments. 

3



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Arbitrage 

The District is required to have an Arbitrage Rebate Calculation on the District’s Series 2006 A/B Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds.  

Trustee 

The District’s Series 2006 A/B Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds are held by a Trustee at U.S. Bank. 
The amount represents the fee for the administration of the District’s bond issue. 

Dissemination Agent 

The District has contracted with GMS, LLC, to act as the Dissemination Agent for the District to prepare the 
Annual Disclosure Report required by the Security and Exchange Commission in order to comply with Rule 
15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), which relates to additional reporting requirements for un-rated bond issues. 

Management Fees 

The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management 
Agreement with Governmental Management Services, LLC. 

Information Technology 

Represents costs related to the District’s information systems, which include but are not limited to video 
conferencing services, cloud storage services and servers, security, accounting software, etc.  

Telephone 

This item includes the cost of a telephone and fax machine. 

Postage 

This item includes mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc. 

Printing & Binding 

Printing and Binding agenda packages for board meetings, printing of checks, stationary, envelopes etc. 

Insurance 

The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust.  PGIT specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 

Legal Advertising 

The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings, public hearings etc in the 
Florida Times Union. 

4



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Other Current Charges  

Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses incurred during the year.  Also includes service fee to 
provide revised amortization schedule by Disclosure Services. 

Website Maintenace 

Represents the costs associated with monitoring and maintaining the District’s website created in 
accordance with Chapter 189, Florida Statutes. These services include site performance assessments, 
security and firewall maintenance, updates, document uploads, hosting and domain renewals, website 
backups, etc. 

Office Supplies 

This item includes the cost of miscellaneous office supplies. 

Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions 

The District is required to pay an annual fee to the Department of Economic Opportunity for $175.  This is 
the only expense under this category for the District. 

Amenity Center 

Insurance 

The District's Property Insurance policy will be with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust.  PGIT 
specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. 

General Facility Maintenance 

Cost of routine repairs and maintenance of the District’s common areas and Amenity Center. 

Repairs and Replacements 

Represents any funds that will be used to make repairs and replacements to facility or equipment in the 
District Amenity Center 

Recreation Passes 

Represents the estimated cost for access cards to the District’s Amenity Center. 

Postage 

This item includes mailing of newsletter to residents. 

Printing & Email Marketing 

Includes costs of publishing newsletter and other mailings/emails associated with the amenity center. 

5



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Office Supplies 

This item includes the cost of office supplies needed for the operation of the amenity center. 

Other Current Charges  

Any unanticipated costs to the amenity center 

Permit Fees 

Represents Permit Fees paid to the Department of Health for the swimming pool. 

Contingency 

This item includes a contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District. 

Amenity Management 

Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide management services of amenity 
center. 

Facility Assistant 

Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide part time staffing of amenity center. 

Special Events 

This item represents the estimated cost for the District to host any special events for the community 
throughout the Fiscal Year. 

Utilities: 

Water 

District currently has one account with CCUA for water at the Amenity Center.  Budget includes growth for 
additional use and new accounts. 

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $4,773 $57,277

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $1,624 $19,489

Account # Service Address      Monthly             Annual
257235 4200 Pine Ridge Pkwy Amenity $305 $3,660

Contingency $70 $840
$375 $4,500

6



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Electric 

District currently has one account with Clay Electric for electric at the Amenity Center.  Budget includes 
growth for additional use and new accounts. 

Cable/Phone/Internet 

Cost of cable, telephone and internet service provided by Comcast for the Amenity Center. 

Management Contracts 

Field Management Services 

The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. for the supervision and on-site 
management of Pine Ridge Plantation. 

Lifeguards 

The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide lifeguard services during 
pool operation season. 

Pool Maintenance 

The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services, Inc. to provide pool cleaning and 
maintenance services.  Monthly service is for two cleanings, plus the cost of chemicals.  During summer 
months, cleanings may be increased to three times a week. 

Pool Chemicals 

Poolsure will provide the necessary chemicals for the Amenity Center pool. 

Account # Service Address Monthly Annual
7808611 4200 Pine Ridge/Amenity $1,600 $19,200

Contingency $317 $3,800
$1,917 $23,000

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $1,866 $22,388

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $1,042 $12,500

Vendor Monthly Annual
Poolsure $1,026 $12,306

7



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Janitorial Service 

The District has contracted with Riverside Management Services to provide janitorial services for the 
Amenity Center.   

Janitorial Supplies 

All supplies needed for janitorial services. 

Refuse Service 

This item includes the cost of garbage disposal for the District contracted with Advanced Disposal. 

Security/Monitoring 

The District employs off-duty officers through the Clay County Sheriff’s Office to provide security services 
for the District.   Also contracted with SafeTouch for security monitoring alarm system and Pye-Barker Fire 
and Safety for fire alarm monitoring.  Web Watch Dogs provides extended warranty on surveillance 
equipment. 

Gate Monitor 

Services provided by Riverside Management Services, Inc. to check people in and out at the pool gate. 

Grounds Maintenance: 

Landscape Maintenance 

The District has contracted with Down to Earth to provide landscaping services to all the common areas 
within the District.  The current contract is $7,160.00 per month. 

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $677 $8,127

Vendor Monthly Annual
Clay County Sheriffs Officers $515 $6,180
Safetouch $84 $1,007
Web Watch Dog $38 $450
Pye-Barker Fire and Safety $95 $1,140
Contingency $102 $1,223

$833 $10,000

Vendor Monthly Annual
Riverside Management Services $512 $6,146

Vendor Monthly Annual
Down to Earth $7,160 $85,920
Contingency $1,173 $14,080

$8,333 $100,000

8



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Lake Maintenance 

The District has contracted with The Lake Doctors to perform monthly service to include inspections and 
treats as necessary for the control and prevention of aquatic weeds and algae. 

Electric 

The District currently has the following accounts with Clay Electric. 

Water 

The District currently has the following accounts with CCUA. Budget includes growth for additional use and 
new accounts. 

Repair & Maintenance 

Regular maintenance and replacement. 

Contingencies 

This item includes a contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District. 

Vendor Monthly Annual
The Lake Doctors $670 $8,040

Contingency $105 $1,260
$775 $9,300

Account # Service Address      Monthly Average
8824799 4201-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy #1 Irrig Clock $30 $360
8824808 1217-1 Camp Ridge Land $25 $300
7371685 4392-1 Pine Ridge Park - Irrigation $25 $300
8824805 1452-2 Tynes Blvd - Entrance $35 $420
8837872 1484 Tynes Blvd #2 Irrig Clock/Sign $35 $420

Contingency $35 $700
$185 $2,500

Account # Service Address      Monthly Average
246892 1376-1 Tynes Blvd Reclaimed $150 $1,800
246893 1475-1 Tyne Blvd Reclaimed $150 $1,800
248250 4228-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $450 $5,400
248496 4354-1 Foggy Day Dr Reclaimed Irrigation $200 $2,400
248497 4421-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $200 $2,400
248498 4688-1 Pine Lake Dr Reclaimed $35 $420
248499 4201-2 Pine Ridge Pkwy Irrigation $50 $600
257236 4200-1 Pine Ridge Pkwy Irrigation $200 $2,400
260144 4200 Pine Ridge Pkwy Reclaimed $200 $2,400

Contingency $15,380
$35,000

9



Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Capital Reserve 

The District has established a Capital Reserve to fund renewal and replacement of the District’s capital 
related facilities and equipment.   

10



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District Debt Service Fund

Series 2006 A/2020A1 and A2

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2021 As of 4/30/2021 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/21 Budget FY2022

Revenues

Assessments - Tax Roll $933,481 $920,122 $6,450 $926,572 $926,572
Interest Income $3,000 $31 $27 $58 $3,000
Fund Balance $459,194 $40,564 $0 $40,564 $171,879

Total Revenues $1,395,676 $960,717 $6,477 $967,194 $1,101,450

Expenditures
Series 2006A/2020A
Interest 11/1 $277,155 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Principal 5/1 $380,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest 5/1 $277,155 $0 $0 $0 $0

Series 2020A1
Interest 11/1 $0 $28,866 $0 $28,866 $114,010
Interest 51 $0 $0 $120,835 $120,835 $114,010
Principal 5/1 $0 $0 $455,000 $455,000 $470,000

Series 2020A1
Interest 11/1 $0 $11,688 $0 $11,688 $47,139
Interest 51 $0 $0 $48,926 $48,926 $47,139
Principal 5/1 $0 $0 $130,000 $130,000 $135,000

Total Expenses $934,310 $40,554 $754,761 $795,315 $927,298

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $461,366 $920,163 ($748,285) $171,879 $174,153

A1 Interest Expense - 11/1/22 $106,960
A2 Interest Expense - 11/1/22 $45,283

$152,243

Total Gross Assessment $985,715
Less: Discounts & Collections (6%) ($59,143)

Total Net Assessment $926,572

11



DATE BALANCE RATE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

11/1/21 9,090,000.00$   114,010.00$    689,845.00$    
5/1/22 9,090,000.00$   470,000.00$    114,010.00$    

11/1/22 8,620,000.00$   106,960.00$    690,970.00$    
5/1/23 8,620,000.00$   480,000.00$    106,960.00$    

11/1/23 8,140,000.00$   99,760.00$   686,720.00$    
5/1/24 8,140,000.00$   500,000.00$    99,760.00$   

11/1/24 7,640,000.00$   92,260.00$   692,020.00$    
5/1/25 7,640,000.00$   515,000.00$    92,260.00$   

11/1/25 7,125,000.00$   87,110.00$   694,370.00$    
5/1/26 7,125,000.00$   520,000.00$    87,110.00$   

11/1/26 6,605,000.00$   81,910.00$   689,020.00$    
5/1/27 6,605,000.00$   535,000.00$    81,910.00$   

11/1/27 6,070,000.00$   76,560.00$   693,470.00$    
5/1/28 6,070,000.00$   545,000.00$    76,560.00$   

11/1/28 5,525,000.00$   71,110.00$   692,670.00$    
5/1/29 5,525,000.00$   555,000.00$    71,110.00$   

11/1/29 4,970,000.00$   65,560.00$   691,670.00$    
5/1/30 4,970,000.00$   565,000.00$    65,560.00$   

11/1/30 4,405,000.00$   59,556.88$   690,116.88$    
5/1/31 4,405,000.00$   580,000.00$    59,556.88$   

11/1/31 3,825,000.00$   51,944.38$   691,501.25$    
5/1/32 3,825,000.00$   595,000.00$    51,944.38$   

11/1/32 3,230,000.00$   44,135.00$   691,079.38$    
5/1/33 3,230,000.00$   610,000.00$    44,135.00$   

11/1/33 2,620,000.00$   36,128.75$   690,263.75$    
5/1/34 2,620,000.00$   630,000.00$    36,128.75$   

11/1/34 1,990,000.00$   27,860.00$   693,988.75$    
5/1/35 1,990,000.00$   645,000.00$    27,860.00$   

11/1/35 1,345,000.00$   18,830.00$   691,690.00$    
5/1/36 1,345,000.00$   665,000.00$    18,830.00$   

11/1/36 680,000.00$   9,520.00$   693,350.00$    
5/1/37 680,000.00$   680,000.00$    9,520.00$   

689,520.00$    
9,090,000.00$   2,086,430.00$   11,752,265.00$   

Series 2020 A-1 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond Combined

Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District

12



DATE BALANCE RATE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

11/1/21 2,760,000.00$   47,138.75$   226,065.00$    
5/1/22 2,760,000.00$   135,000.00$    47,138.75$   

11/1/22 2,625,000.00$   45,282.50$   227,421.25$    
5/1/23 2,625,000.00$   140,000.00$    45,282.50$   

11/1/23 2,485,000.00$   43,357.50$   228,640.00$    
5/1/24 2,485,000.00$   140,000.00$    43,357.50$   

11/1/24 2,345,000.00$   41,432.50$   224,790.00$    
5/1/25 2,345,000.00$   145,000.00$    41,432.50$   

11/1/25 2,200,000.00$   39,438.75$   225,871.25$    
5/1/26 2,200,000.00$   150,000.00$    39,438.75$   

11/1/26 2,050,000.00$   36,963.75$   226,402.50$    
5/1/27 2,050,000.00$   155,000.00$    36,963.75$   

11/1/27 1,895,000.00$   34,406.25$   226,370.00$    
5/1/28 1,895,000.00$   160,000.00$    34,406.25$   

11/1/28 1,735,000.00$   31,766.25$   226,172.50$    
5/1/29 1,735,000.00$   165,000.00$    31,766.25$   

11/1/29 1,570,000.00$   29,043.75$   225,810.00$    
5/1/30 1,570,000.00$   175,000.00$    29,043.75$   

11/1/30 1,395,000.00$   26,156.25$   230,200.00$    
5/1/31 1,395,000.00$   175,000.00$    26,156.25$   

11/1/31 1,220,000.00$   22,875.00$   224,031.25$    
5/1/32 1,220,000.00$   185,000.00$    22,875.00$   

11/1/32 1,035,000.00$   19,406.25$   227,281.25$    
5/1/33 1,035,000.00$   190,000.00$    19,406.25$   

11/1/33 845,000.00$   15,843.75$   225,250.00$    
5/1/34 845,000.00$   200,000.00$    15,843.75$   

11/1/34 645,000.00$   12,093.75$   227,937.50$    
5/1/35 645,000.00$   205,000.00$    12,093.75$   

11/1/35 440,000.00$   8,250.00$   225,343.75$    
5/1/36 440,000.00$   215,000.00$    8,250.00$   

11/1/36 225,000.00$   4,218.75$   227,468.75$    
5/1/37 225,000.00$   225,000.00$    4,218.75$   

229,218.75$    
2,890,000.00$   975,961.75$    3,865,961.75$   

Community Development District

Series 2020 A-2 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond Combined

Pine Ridge Plantation 

13



Pine Ridge Plantation
Community Development District Capital Reserve

Adopted Actual YTD Projected Projected Proposed
Description Budget FY2021 As of 4/30/2021 Next 5 Months Thru 9/30/21 Budget FY2022

Revenues

Capital Reserve - Transfer In $24,614 $24,614 $0 $24,614 $24,614
Interest $0 $212 $70 $282 $0
Carry Forward Surplus $334,863 $327,282 $0 $327,282 $341,567

Total Revenues $359,477 $352,108 $70 $352,178 $366,181

Expenditures

Capital Outlay $20,000 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $20,000
Culture/Recreation $20,001 $5,611 $0 $5,611 $20,000

Total Expenses $40,001 $5,611 $5,000 $10,611 $40,000

EXCESS REVENUES / (EXPENDITURES) $319,476 $346,497 ($4,930) $341,567 $326,181



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



February 5, 2021 

Clay County Utility Authority 
3176 Old Jennings Road 

Middleburg, Florida 32068-3907 
Telephone (904) 272-5999 
Facsimile (904) 213-2498 

www.clayutility.org 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
Pine Ridge COD 
Attn: Ernesto Torres 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
Str. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Working together to protect 
public health. conserve our 

natural resources, and 
create long-term value for 

our ratepayers. 

Re: Letter Agreement for the installation of two I-inch reclaimed irrigation water meters for the two 
common area parks located at 4506, 4507 Pine Ridge West Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. 

Dear Mr. Torres: 

This is to advise you (Developer) that the Clay County Utility Authority (Utility) will provide the installation 
of two I-inch reclaimed irrigation water meters, to the above-referenced locations, for a total charge of 
$10,035.46. This charge is derived as follows: 

* 
** 

*** 

Reclaimed Water Capacity Charge: 
($300.00 x 8.0 ERCs) 

Customer Connection Charge (Tap-in) - Reclaimed 
Debt Service Charge: 

($167.00 x 8.0 ERCs) 
Reclaimed Water Meter Charge 
Plan Review Fee 
Inspection Fee 
Total: 

$ 2,400.00 * 
$ 3,429.34 

$ 1,336.00 
$ 2,793.12 ** 
$ 38.50 
$ 38.50 
$ I 0.035.46 

Includes 8.0 ERCs for reclaimed irrigation water based upon 2058 AGPD for the project. 
Includes two I-inch reclaimed water meters, with meter box. 
Developer is responsible for all site restoration. 

It shall be Developer's, its successors and assigns, responsibility to apply to Utility for service after the 
installation of the reclaimed water meter. Upon completion of application for reclaimed water service 
and payment of the appropriate charges set forth in Utility's then current applicable Rate Resolution, 
including any security deposits required, service will be initiated to Developer's Property. 

Developer shall, by perpetual covenants and restrictions, require each developed lot or parcel within the 
Property to install an on-site irrigation system in full compliance with Utility's Reclaimed Water Policy 
(i.e., "Reuse Policy"), and shall require that those systems be operated and maintained in accordance 
with the rules and regulations of Utility, as well as all governmental agencies having jurisdiction over 
such reclaimed water systems, and all lots or parcels lying within the Property are hereby so restricted. 

Conservation • Commitment • Community 



Pine Ridge CDD 
Page 2 of2 

Developer agrees that all elements of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection rules and 
regulations regarding the use of reclaimed water within the project will be adhered to at all times, and 
that the Homeowners' Association will continue to be responsible after Developer is no longer in charge 
of the Pine Ridge Plantation West Subdivision. 

This specifically pertains to the Public Notice (posting of signs) provisions of the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection rules and regulations, as well as all specific requirements pertaining to the use 
of reclaimed water in public areas and on roadways. 

No wells shall be permitted within or upon the Property for any purpose. 

All irrigation contractors employed by Developer to install reclaimed water irrigation systems within the 
Property shall be registered with Utility. The criteria for registration is included in Utility's Cross
Connection Control Policy. Once registered, such irrigation contractor shall comply completely with 
Utility's Cross-Connection Control Policy and Reuse Policy. Cross-connection control inspections will 
not be conducted for irrigation contractors that are not registered with Utility. 

All of the provisions in the original Developer Agreement CUl8/19-10, dated January 25, 2019 entitled Pine 
Ridge Plantation West, 113 Single Family Lots, recorded in Official Records Book 4163, pages 230 through 
246, will remain in full force and effect. 

If the above is acceptable to you, please acknowledge same by signing in the space provided below and 
return the executed Letter Agreement to us, along with payment for same, and we will process a Work Order 
for the above-referenced meter installations. 

Please feel free to contact Melisa Blaney, at (904) 213-2420, if you have any questions or require additional 
information. 

Sincerely, Accepted by: 
CLAY COUNTY UTILITY AUTHORITY Governmental Management Services, LLC 

Melisa Blaney 
Service Availability Technician III Print Name: ___________ _ 

Title:--------------
MB/jmg Date: ______________ _ 

cc: CCUA Job File 



54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

6364
65

66

67

68

69

70
71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80

81

82

83

84
858687

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95
MATCHLINE LC-1

MATCHLINE LC-2

QV (2)
PE (3)

PARK
1.17 Ac.

PARK
0.64 Ac.

PERIMETER REQUIREMENT
( 1 TREE PER 50' PER CLAY COUNTY)
(35' BUFFER MIN. WITH 85% OPACITY SCREEN
PER BRANAN FIELD CODE)
TREES AND SHRUBS MAY BE ADJUSTED PER ANY
EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL.

PERIMETER REQUIREMENT
( 1 TREE PER 50' PER CLAY COUNTY)
(35' BUFFER MIN. WITH 85% OPACITY SCREEN
PER BRANAN FIELD CODE)
TREES AND SHRUBS MAY BE ADJUSTED PER ANY
EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL.

30' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' BUFFER

20' BUFFER

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER
REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%

OPACITY REQUIREMENT

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%

OPACITY REQUIREMENT

IE (1)

IE (3)

PE (2)

AR (1)

PO2 (1)QV (1)

PO2 (1)

AR (1)PO2 (1)QV (1)PO2 (1)

PO2 (2)QV (1)PO2 (1)

PO2 (1)

PO2 (1)

QV (1)

AR (7)

TD (11)

PO2 (6)

JV (1)IE (2)
JV (3) IE (3)JV (1)

IE (1)

IP (196)

IE (1)

IE (1)

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%
OPACITY REQUIREMENT

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER

REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER
REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO

IP (85)

QV (1)

QV (2)

IP (70)

IP (74)

AR (2)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

*See sheet LC-4 for plant specifications

NOTES:

IRRIGATION:CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
WATERING REQUIREMENTS THROUGH
CLAY COUNTY FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF
NEWLY PLANTED TREES, SHRUBS AND
GRASS.

MULCH:A LAYER OF ORGANIC MULCH TO
A MINIMUM DEPTH OF TWO INCHES SHALL
BE SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS
IN PLANT BEDS AND AROUND INDIVIDUAL
TREES IN TURF GRASS AREAS. MULCH
SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED IN ANNUAL
BEDS.

ROOT BARRIERS MUST BE INSTALLED
AROUND ANY TREE PLANTED WITHIN 10'
OF UTILITIES PER CCUA REQUIREMENTS.
ANY TREES PLANTED WITHIN 10' OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO BE
HAND-DUG

1"=50'-0"
100'50'25'0'

NORTH

14
77

5
O

ld
St

.A
ug

us
tin

e
Ro

ad
Ja

ck
so

nv
ill

e,
FL

32
25

8

TE
L:

(9
04

)6
42

-8
99

0
FA

X:
(9

04
)6

46
-9

48
5

C
A

-0
00

02
58

4
LC

-0
00

03
16



123
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54
95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109
110

111

112 113

MATCHLINE LC-2

MATCHLINE LC-3

MATCHLINE LC-1

MATCHLINE LC-2

MC2 (32)

MC2 (33)

TFL (145)

TFL (151)

MC2 (42)

MC2 (34)

MC2 (32)

PNA (91,071 sf)

IP (75)

PE (1)

IE (3)

PE (1)

PE (1)

SP (3)

MG (1)
SP (3)

MG (1)

SP (3)

MG (1)

SP (5)

SP (5)

MG (1)

SP (2)

SP (1)

MG (1)

QV (1)

QV (8)

QV (8)

IE (1)
QV (3)

PICNIC
TABLES

MG (1)

SSF (17,313 sf)

MG (8)

SP (3)

PARK
0.65 Ac.

PARK
0.32 Ac.

RESIDENTIAL BUFFER ADJ. TO ROW:
6 TREE CREDITS

PER 100 LF BUFFER &
CONTINUOUS SCREENING

 HEDGE, 24" HIGH

30' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

PE (1)

SP (3)

PO2 (9)

AR (6)

AR (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

VS (21)

VS (74)

VS (71)

IE (1)

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%
OPACITY REQUIREMENT

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%
OPACITY REQUIREMENT

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER
REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN TO MEET BUFFER

REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

TD (1)

SSF (12,991 sf)

PNA (95,038 sf)

TD (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

MC2 (55)

PICNIC
TABLES

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

*See sheet LC-4 for plant specifications

NOTES:

IRRIGATION:CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
WATERING REQUIREMENTS THROUGH
CLAY COUNTY FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF
NEWLY PLANTED TREES, SHRUBS AND
GRASS.

MULCH:A LAYER OF ORGANIC MULCH TO
A MINIMUM DEPTH OF TWO INCHES SHALL
BE SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS
IN PLANT BEDS AND AROUND INDIVIDUAL
TREES IN TURF GRASS AREAS. MULCH
SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED IN ANNUAL
BEDS.

ROOT BARRIERS MUST BE INSTALLED
AROUND ANY TREE PLANTED WITHIN 10'
OF UTILITIES PER CCUA REQUIREMENTS.
ANY TREES PLANTED WITHIN 10' OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO BE
HAND-DUG

NORTH

0' 25' 50' 100'
1"=50'-0"

14
77

5
O

ld
St

.A
ug

us
tin

e
Ro

ad
Ja

ck
so

nv
ill

e,
FL

32
25

8

TE
L:

(9
04

)6
42

-8
99

0
FA

X:
(9

04
)6

46
-9

48
5

C
A

-0
00

02
58

4
LC

-0
00

03
16



Total PointsTree Point Credit

372.2

1234.4

111.0

 Tree Points Planted
686

Tree Point Requirements
80.98 Ac. x 32 = 2,591

% PROVIDED

5%

18%

2%

Total %
100%

1284.4 19%

281.0 4%

1284.4 19%

Tree Points Planted: 686
Tree Points Preserved: 3,594
Bonus Tree Points Provided: 1,052
Total Points Provided: 5,332

1064.4 15%

1144.4 16%

112.2 2%

PINE BARK MINI-NUGGETS 2"

123
4

5

6

7

812

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

MATCHLINE LC-2

MATCHLINE LC-3

TFL (151)

MC2 (42)

MC2 (34)

MC2 (32)

SP (5)

MG (1)

SP (2)

SP (1)

MG (1)

PE (1)
PE (1)

VS (38)VS (34)

MG (1)

MG (8)

SP (3)

PARK
0.32 Ac.

PERIMETER REQUIREMENT
( 1 TREE PER 50' PER CLAY COUNTY)
(35' BUFFER MIN. WITH 85% OPACITY SCREEN
PER BRANAN FIELD CODE)
TREES AND SHRUBS MAY BE ADJUSTED PER ANY
EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL.

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%

OPACITY REQUIREMENT

50' BUFFER

50' BUFFER

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER
REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%

OPACITY REQUIREMENT

PE (1)

SP (3)

AR (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

TD (1)

MG (9)

TD (1)

AR (1)

TD (1)

VS (71)

EXISTING 30' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER MEETS 85%
OPACITY REQUIREMENT

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN
TO MEET BUFFER

REQUIREMENT (TYP.)

AR (5)

SSF (12,991 sf)

PNA (95,038 sf)

VS (82)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

MG (1)

TD (1)

AR (1)

PICNIC
TABLES

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

SILT FENCE (TYP.)

*See sheet LC-4 for plant specifications

NOTES:

IRRIGATION:CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY
WATERING REQUIREMENTS THROUGH
CLAY COUNTY FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF
NEWLY PLANTED TREES, SHRUBS AND
GRASS.

MULCH:A LAYER OF ORGANIC MULCH TO
A MINIMUM DEPTH OF TWO INCHES SHALL
BE SPECIFIED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS
IN PLANT BEDS AND AROUND INDIVIDUAL
TREES IN TURF GRASS AREAS. MULCH
SHALL NOT BE REQUIRED IN ANNUAL
BEDS.

ROOT BARRIERS MUST BE INSTALLED
AROUND ANY TREE PLANTED WITHIN 10'
OF UTILITIES PER CCUA REQUIREMENTS.
ANY TREES PLANTED WITHIN 10' OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO BE
HAND-DUG

1"=50'-0"
100'50'25'0'

NORTH

14
77

5
O

ld
St

.A
ug

us
tin

e
Ro

ad
Ja

ck
so

nv
ill

e,
FL

32
25

8

TE
L:

(9
04

)6
42

-8
99

0
FA

X:
(9

04
)6

46
-9

48
5

C
A

-0
00

02
58

4
LC

-0
00

03
16



4.2 Layout.  The location of plants and planting beds, as shown on these plans, are approximate. The locations
and bed lines shall be staked on the project site by the Contractor and approved by the Owner's Representative
before any plant pits or beds are dug.  The Owner's Representative may adjust plant material locations to meet
field conditions.  Contractor shall make minor adjustments without additional cost to the Owner.

4.3 Finish Grades.  The Landscape Contractor is responsible for all fine grading and preparation for planting. Finish
grades (top of soil) for all sod areas after settlement shall be one-half inch below the top of abutting curbs,
walks, walls and abutments. The finish grade of all plant beds prior to mulching shall be three inches below
finish grade of sod, abutting curbs, walks and walls.  Three inches of mulch shall be added after planting.

4.4 Planting Seasons/Times.  The planting of plant materials and lawns may proceed at any time, period, or
season agreed upon by the Contractor and the Owner or Owner's Representative.

4.5 Plant Pits.  The Contractor shall excavate plant pits, unless otherwise approved, according to the drawings.

4.6 Setting Plants.  Each plant shall be established in a manner consistent with plant details. All plants shall be set
plumb and straight. Plants shall be established to a depth that is not greater than that at which they grew when
in the nursery container or field.  All back fill shall be tamped and worked firmly under and around the root ball to
fill all voids.

4.7 Soil Preparation for Trees, Shrubs and Groundcover. All areas to be planted shall be prepared in a manner
to insure normal, vigorous and healthy growth of plant material.

4.8 Staking.  All trees are to be staked unless otherwise instructed by Owner or Owner's Representative. Refer
general staking details on the drawings. Materials used shall insure healthy plant growth.

4.9 Mulching.  All plant beds and plant saucers shall be uniformly covered with a two to three-inch (2-3") layer of
mulch. Hedges shall be mulched the full width of the hedge bed.  Contain mulch within landscape borders.

4.10 Sod.  All areas to be either seeded, sprigged, or sodded shall be prepared in a manner to insure normal,
vigorous and healthy growth.

4.10.1 Fine grade lawn areas to smooth, even surface with loose, uniformly fine texture. Roll, rake and
drag lawn areas, remove ridges and fill depressions with topsoil as required to meet finish grades.
In areas to be sodded, allow for sod thickness.

4.10.2 Sod Installation.  Lay sod in straight, parallel rows to form a solid mass with tightly fitted joints,
without overlap. Stagger strips to offset joints. Work topsoil into minor cracks. On 1:3 slopes or
greater, lay sod with long dimension of pads parallel to contours and stake sod as necessary
to stabilize. Drive sod stakes flush with top of  sod.

4.10.3 Sprigging and Seeding.  Sprigging/seeding shall be done in a manner to insure a quick grow in
period achieving a uniform green lawn prior to final acceptance.

PART 5   MAINTENANCE
5.1  Plant Material. Maintain all plant materials until Final Acceptance. Maintenance shall include all required

watering, cultivation, weeding, mowing, pruning, wound dressing, immediate replacement of dead and
unacceptable material, straightening plants which lean or sag, adjustments of plants which are planted too low,
and any other procedure consistent with good horticultural practice necessary to insure normal, vigorous and
healthy growth of all planting under this Contract.

5.2 Lawn.  Maintain lawns until Final Acceptance. Reset settled or eroded sod areas to proper grade. Fill open
joints with topsoil. Keep sod free of insects and disease.

PART 6   FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE
6.1  Final Cleanup.  Upon final completion of work and before inspection and acceptance, all aspects of the project

site shall be thoroughly and completely cleaned of debris, stains, materials, defacements, and temporary
facilities.  Likewise, any repairs, which are the obligation of this Contractor, shall be completed.

6.2  Initial Inspection and Acceptance.  Inspection shall be made by the Owner or Owner's Representative within
(10) ten days of written notification from the Contractor that installation is complete.  If all work and materials
meet specifications project will be accepted as is.  Materials and work not in compliance with specifications shall
be rejected by Owners Representative and replaced by the contractor within (15) fifteen days of notification by
Owner's Representative.  Notification will graphically depict all rejected material on plans. Upon replacement of
all rejected work and materials by the contractor the Owner's Representative shall conduct a final inspection
within ten (10) days of written notification from the Contractor that all rejected work has been replaced according
to specifications.  Approval will be granted upon the acceptance of all replaced material noted on plans. After
final acceptance, the landscape contractor will not be responsible for damage to work resulting from:neglect by
Owner, damage by others; abnormal weather conditions such as floods, excessive wind, severe freezing or
abnormal rains; or other activities clearly beyond the Landscape Contractor's control.

PART 7   GUARANTEE
7.1 Guarantee.  All plant materials and trees installed by the Contractor shall be guaranteed for 365 days from the

date of final inspection and acceptance.  The Contractor shall replace at no additional cost tothe Owner, all plant
materials which die and/or which are not healthy and in a good growing conditionduring the guarantee period.
Replacement of such material shall occur within ten (10) days from Owner's written notification to the Contractor.
The 365 day guarantee period for replaced plant materials shall commence on the date of acceptance of the
replaced item or items of plant material.  The Contractor shall not be required to replace, repair, or restore any
portion of the work that is damaged, defaced, disturbed, and/or destroyed by others after final acceptance.

PART 1  GENERAL NOTES
1.1 Scope.  This section includes all planting of shrubs, trees, ground covers, and other supplementary work

shown on the drawings and specified herein, complete.

1.2 Applicable Documents.  The following publications, specifications, and standards of the issues listed in
this paragraph (including the amendments and addenda designated), but referred to hereinafter by basic
designation only, form a part of this specification to the extent required by the references thereto.

1.3 Publication of Reference.  Publications as herein listed shall be held in basic reference:
1.3.1 Grades and Standards for Nursery Plants, Parts I and II, State Department of Agriculture and/or

State Plant Board of Florida, Seagle Building, Gainesville, Florida.
1.3.2  State of Florida Fertilizer Law, Office of the Secretary of State, Tallahassee, Florida.
1.3.3  American Standard for Nursery Stock (ANSI Z60.1-),  American Association of Nurserymen.
1.3.4  Tree Care Operations (ANSI Z133.1-)
1.3.5  Guideline Specifications to Sodding, America Sod Producers Association (ASPA).

1.4 Substitutions of Plant Material.  If a plant is found to be unavailable, submit proof of non-availability and a
proposal for use of equivalent material.  When authorized, adjustment of contract amount will be made.  No
substitutions will otherwise be authorized. To prove non-availability, The Contractor must provide at least eight
(8) letters from growers or dealers from the States of Florida and Georgia explaining the non-availability of the
plant material.

1.5 On-Site Conditions and Adjustments.  The locations of plants, as shown on the plans, are approximate. The
work shall be executed in a manner to avoid conflicts with utilities and other elements of construction, including
landscape materials and hardscape surfaces.  Planting shall be adjusted to fit actual as-built conditions on the
site and any changes in locations caused thereby shall be made without additional cost to the Owner, Owner's
Representative, or Landscape Architect. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner's Representative
when conditions detrimental to plant growth are encountered, such as rubble fill, lime rock, or obstructions; and
when field conditions are different than portrayed on the plans prior to planting. The Owner or Owner's
Representative may adjust the layout or location of specified plant materials to avoid these areas without
additional costs.

1.6 Coordination of Plantings.  Coordinate all landscape work with the Owner's Representative and other
contractors.  Plant trees and shrubs after final grades are established and prior to planting of lawns, unless
otherwise directed by the Owners Representative.

1.7 Fine Grading.  Provide fine grading necessary to establish finish grade in all landscape areas. Fine grading
shall include only minor grading to correct random or infrequent grade irregularities of 12" or less; unless
therwise noted on plans.

1.8 Liability of Contractor.  The Contractor shall be liable for any and all damages to property that result from
his performance.  He shall, without extra cost, restore to original condition any areas and/or construction
damaged, defaced, disturbed, or destroyed by him or his workmen.

1.9 Tree Tagging.  A tree tagging trip may be requested by Owner's Representative prior to approval of plant
material.  Landscape contractor shall be responsible for providing transportation and accomodations if
necessary.

1.10 Inferior Materials.  Contractor shall be responsible for rejecting inferior materials.   Materials in a damaged or
unhealthy state may be rejected by the Owners Representative if necessary.

1.11 Onsite Debris.  Contractor shall be responsible for removing and disposing of offsite all stones over 1" in
diameter, sticks, roots, and other extraneous matter in planted areas to a depth of 2'.  If debris is excessive and
results from construction waste please contact owners representative for appropriate actions.

PART 2    SUBMITTALS
2.1 Soil Testing for Plant Material.  The Contractor shall be responsible for testing soils in planted areas to

confirm that soil is suitable for healthy plant growth.

2.2 Seed Certification. All seed must comply with regulatory agencies for fertilizer and herbicide composition.

2.3 Inspection Certificates, Manufacturer's Data.  Upon request of Owners representative copies of  inspection
certificates or manufacturer's data shall be provided for any material used onsite; in additon to existing materials
found onsite.

PART 3    MATERIALS
3.1 General Plant Materials Requirements.  Provide state inspected, nursery grown plants, unless otherwise

specified. Conform to the plant schedule, "Florida Department of Agriculture Grades and Standards for Nursery
Plants", local landscape ordinance, and, where applicable, to ANSI Z60.1  All plant materials shall be nursery
grown, Florida No.1 stock. All materials shall be healthy, vigorous, free of diseases and insects, pruned for best
shape without appearance of  "de-horning", and without symptoms of nutritional deficiency. Furnish plants grown
under climatic conditions similar to those in the locality of the project. All plants mustbe true of variety, cultivars,
and/or species. Plants must measure according to sizing requirements detailed on the drawings. Plants must be
naturally bushy, dense, in good foliage, well branched, and of good appearance. The nursery/nurseries from
which they are derived shall be under regulatory inspection by the Florida State Department of Agriculture
and/or the Florida State Plant Board or an equivalent agency, if derived from outside the State of Florida. Plants
entering from outside the State of Florida must bear the entry certificate of the State Department of Agriculture
of the State of Florida. All plant materials will be subject to approval of the Owner or Owner's Representative for
quality, size and color.

3.2 Soil Additives.  Contractor shall be responsible for adding peat, humus, fertilizer, manure, pH adjusters or any
other commercially accepted soil additive to insure normal, healthy plant growth.

3.3 Balled and Burlapped Trees.  Ensure that field grown material follows local industry standars for root  pruning,
digging, balling and burlapping, etc.  All balled and burlapped materials must be hardened off before shipment.
All materials are subject to approval by the Owners Representative prior to shipping to project site.

3.4 Spaded Trees.  Trees shall have been spaded from a commercial nursery field that has been inspected by The
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services within the last 9 months.  The Contractor shall provide a copy
of the most recent Nursery, Stock dealer and Special Inspection Report for verification upon Owners
Representative request.  Ball size shall be at least one size greater than recommended by ANSI Z60.1,
American Standard for Nursery Stock, unless otherwise specified.  Spaded material is subject to approval and
tagging by the Owner's Representative prior to shipping to project site.

3.5 Container Plants.  Provide container grown plants with sufficient roots to hold the container soil together after
removal from the container. Root bound plants and plants with inadequate root systems are not acceptable.

3.6 Surface Mulch.  Plans shall specify mulch type.  Mulch shall be in a non-decomposed state; not more than one
(1) season old.

3.7 Herbicides, Insecticides.  Chemical sprays, dusts, or gaseous compounds used on or around plant materials,
including but not limited to trees, shall be approved for such uses by the Environmental Protection Agency and
the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. Such materials as may be used shall not
constitute a hazard to human health or interfere with site working conditions and habitation.

3.8  General Seed Requirements.  Where seeding may be required on the plans, the seed required shall comply
with all minimum provisions of the Florida Seed Certification and Testing Law.   Noxious weed seeds shall be
non-existent and foreign materials shall not exceed two percent.

3.9 General Sod Requirements.  See plan for specified sod.  All sod shall be healthy, strongly rooted and not less
than two (2) years old, free of weeds and undesirable native grasses in 16" x 24" pads, 1-1/2" thick. Sod shall
conform to "Nursery Grown" grade as established by  American Sod Producers Association (ASPA). Sod shall
be considered free of  weeds if less than 5 weeds are found per 100 square feet of area. Brown, dry, irregularly
smooth, and/or unfresh sod will be rejected.

PART 4    PLANTING PROCEDURES
4.1 General. Prior to commencement of any work, the Landscape Contractor shall inspect the site, locate planting

areas, placement of guying devices, locate electrical cables, conduits, and other underground and above utilities
so that proper precautions and procedures may be followed during and throughout construction.  The Contractor
shall become familiar with other job trade activity which has an impact upon his work or upon which his work
has an impact and shall arrange to carefully coordinate his work with other trades through the Owner's
Representative on-site. All planting practices listed herein shall insure healthyplant growth.

SCALE: NTS

LARGE TREE PLANTING DETAIL (4" CALIPER AND LARGER)

12"
TYP.

NTS
PLAN

120 120

120

SET TREE PLUMB IN PLANTING PIT

PROTECT TREE TRUNK WITH BLACK
RUBBER OR PLASTIC FRICTION
GUARDS

12 GAUGE GALV. GUYING WIRE

WHITE SURVEYORS TAPE  ON GUY
WIRES TYP.

HAND TENSIONER AS SPECIFIED

REMOVE TOP 1/3 BURLAP AND WIIRE
CAGE FROM ROOTBALL

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

TEMPORARY SOIL BERM TO HOLD
WATER
ANCHOR STAKE AS SPECIFIED
FINISH GRADE

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOTBALL
REQUIREMENTS

PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE
SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED
SUBGRADE

CONTRACTOR TO ASSURE PERCOLATION IN TREE PITS,
TOP OF ROOTBALL SHALL BE 3" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE,
TREE STAKING MATERIALS PER THESE SPECS OR APPROVED
EQUAL.

'X' 'X'

'X'
NOTE:

24
"

SCALE: NTS

SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER SPACING DETAIL

24" SETBACK FOR SHRUBS PLANTED OPPOSITE
PARKING SPACES W.O. WHEEL STOPS

PROVIDE MIN. 18" SPACING BETWEEN
DIFFERENT PLANT TYPES

ALL SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER MASSES TO
USE TRIANGULAR SPACING EXCEPT IN SMALL
RECTANGULAR AREAS;  REFER TO PLANT LIST
FOR  INDIVIDUAL PLANT SPACING

CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT

'X' = ON CENTER SPACING SEE PLANT LIST

MIN. SETBACKNOTE:
THE PERIMETER OF ALL CURVED PLANTING
BEDS SHALL BE PLANTED WITH A ROW OF
SHRUBS AS SHOWN IN THE PLANS AND AT THE
SPACING SHOWN IN THE PLANT LIST.
INTERIOR PORTIONS OF EACH BED SHALL BE
PLANTED AT APPROPRIATE SPACING
ACCORDING TO THIS PLANT SPACING DETAIL
ABOVE.

NOTE:
18" MIN. SETBACK FOR SHRUBS
12" MIN. SETBACK FOR GROUNDCOVERS

BED LINE

18
"

M
IN

.

SCALE: NTS

TR
U

N
K

H
EI

G
H

T
1/

4
-1

/2

C
LE

AR
TR

U
N

K

FINISH GRADE

SABAL PALM PLANTING DETAIL

NTS
PLAN

120 120

120

HURRICANE CUT PALM BUD AND
FRONDS PALM FROND BOOTS TO
REMAIN INTACT

5 LAYERS OF BURLAP (WRAPPED
AT POINT OF SUPPORT)

WOOD STRAP/BRACING COLLAR
SECURE 2" x 4" BRACES TO
COLLAR WITH NAILS;
DO NOT NAIL TO TRUNK

2" x 4" BRACES SPACED 120° APART

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

4" HIGH EARTH SAUCER

2" x 4" x 24" STAKES (3 REQ'D)

COMPACTED EXISTING SOIL TO
PREVENT SETTLEMENT

TOPSOIL AND EXISTING SOIL
MIXTURE

2X BALL DIA.

X

14
77

5
O

ld
St

.A
ug

us
tin

e
Ro

ad
Ja

ck
so

nv
ill

e,
FL

32
25

8

TE
L:

(9
04

)6
42

-8
99

0
FA

X:
(9

04
)6

46
-9

48
5

C
A

-0
00

02
58

4
LC

-0
00

03
16

12"
TYP.

NTS
PLAN

180

SCALE: NTS

PINE TREE PLANTING DETAIL

CONTRACTOR TO ASSURE PERCOLATION IN
TREE PITS

TOP OF ROOTBALL SHALL BE 3" ABOVE FINISH
GRADE

SET TREE PLUMB IN PLANTING PIT

GUYING WIRE AS SPECIFIED

PROTECT TREE TRUNK WITH BLACK RUBBER  OR
PLASTIC FRICTION GUARD AS SPECIFIED

TWO 2" DIAM. X 6' P.T. WOOD STAKES AS
SPECIFIED

REMOVE BURLAP AND WIRE CAGE FROM TOP 1/3
OF ROOTBALL

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

TEMPORARY SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER

FINISH GRADE

B&B OR CONTAINERIZED ROOTBALL;
SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOTBALL
REQUIREMENTS

PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

180

TYP.
6"

SCALE: NTS

2"

SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL

TYP. FINISH GRADE @ PAVEMENT, SOD OR
MULCH BED

NOTE: PLANTS SHALL BE PLANTED 2"  HIGH
WITH SOIL MOUNDING UP TO THE TOP OF
THE ROOT BALL

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

EXCAVATE INDIVIDUAL PLANT PITS AND
BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL AS
SPECIFIED

TEMPORY SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER

FINISH GRADE

CONTAINERIZED OR B&B ROOTBALL
PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

SET ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED
SUBGRADE

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE PERCOLATION
OF ALL PLANTING PITS PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION.

NOTE:
WHEN GROUNDCOVER AND SHRUBS ARE
USED IN MASS, PREPARE ENTIRE BED TO
RECEIVE PLANTING SOIL AND PLANT
MATERIAL AS SPECIFIED.

NOTE:
USE 1 1/4" x 1 1/4" x 4' STAKES FOR TREES
1/2" TO 1 1/4" CALIPER. OTHER TREE
STAKING SYSTEMS MAY BE ACCEPTABLE
IF APPROVED.

APPROVED PLASTIC OR
RUBBER GUYS

CROWN SPREAD

O
VE

R
AL

L
H

EI
G

H
T

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR
ROOTBALL REQUIREMENTS

1 1/4" x 2 1/2" x 10" STAKES DRIVEN
AT 120° ANGLE, THEN TIGHTENED
TO VERTCAL. (MIN. 2 STAKES,
OPTIONAL 3 STAKES)

SCALE: NTS

SMALL TREE PLANTING DETAIL (1" TO 3-1/2" CALIPER)

NTS
PLAN

180

180

MULCH LAYER AS SPECIFIED

PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

TEMPORARY SOIL BERM TO
HOLD WATER

SET ROOTBALL ON UNDISTURBED
SUBGRADE.

SIDEWALK

SCALE: NTS

ROOT BARRIER DETAIL

NOTES:
-ASSEMBLE THE APPROPRIATE NUMBER OF ROOT BARRIER PANELS.  THE VERTICAL
 ROOT DEFLECTING RIBS ON THE PANELS MUST FACE INWARD, TOWARD THE ROOTBALL.
-PLACE THE BARRIER IN THE CENTER OF THE TRENCH WITH TOP EDGE OF THE
 BARRIER APPROX. 1" ABOVE GRADE.
-BACKFILL & COMPACT WITH SOIL INSIDE BARRIER TO WHERE BOTTOM OF ROOTBALL
 WILL BE.

12"
TYP.

TOP OF ROOT BARRIER MUST
BE A MIN. OF 1" ABOVE GRADE

UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES

4" WIDE TRENCH

ROOT BARRIER

FINISH GRADE

PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE
SET ROOTBALL ON
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

MULCH LAYER
AS SPECIFIED

TEMPORARY SOIL BERM
TO HOLD WATER

TREE
DEEPROOT BARRIER

SIDEWALK

6'-0" 6'-0"



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



        Chris H. Chambless 
 Supervisor of Elections 

 Clay County, Florida 

 
                      

P.O. Box 337            500 N. Orange Ave.               Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
(904) 269-6350            Fax (904) 284-0935 

April 15, 2021 
Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 
Attention:  Wesley Haber 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
 
Dear Mr. Haber: 
 
I have queried the number of eligible voters residing within the Pine Ridge Plantation 
Community Development District as of April 15, 2021.  At this time, there are 1,366                          
registered voters residing within the district. 
 
Please provide the contact information and term expiration dates for the current CDD 
Board Members.  I can be reached via the contact information at the bottom of this page 
or via email at Lynn.Gaver@ClayElections.gov.  
 
In an effort to keep our records updated please notify us of any changes to the Board due 
to resignations or appointments.  
 

 

Thank you, 
 
Lynn Gaver, MFCEP 
Clay County Supervisor of Elections Office 
P.O. Box 337 | 500 North Orange Ave. 
Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 
(904) 269-6350 Fax (904) 284-0935 
 

 
 

mailto:Lynn.Gaver@ClayElections.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



REQUISITION NO.:  393A 

PROJECT COSTS 

PINE RIDGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2006A/B/2020

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Pine Ridge Community Development District 
(the “District”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Master Trust Indenture dated as of September, 2006, and each from the District 
to Suntrust Bank (US Bank) Corporate Trust Services, as trustee (the “Trustee”) (all capitalized 
terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

(A) Requisition Number: 393A 

(B) Name of Payee: Hoffman Commercial Construction, LLC

(C) Address: Hoffman Commercial Construction, LLC 
6919 Distribution Ave, S., Suite 5 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 

(D) Amount Payable: $1,100.00

(E) Purpose for which paid or incurred (refer also to specific contract if amount is due
and payable pursuant to a contract involving progress payments, or, state Costs of
Issuance, if applicable): Budgeting Services for Pine Ridge CDD – Invoice WO #57-1

The undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. X   obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the
District,

or 

 this requisition is for Costs of Issuance that have not previously been paid; 



2. each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the Acquisition and 
Construction Fund;

3. each disbursement set forth above was incurred in connection with the acquisition 
and construction of the Series 2006A/B/2020 Project;

4. each disbursement represents a Cost of the Series 2006A/B/2020 Project which 
has not previously been paid.

The undersigned hereby further certifies that there has not been filed with or served upon 
the District notice of any lien, right to lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to 
receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to the Payee set forth above, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment hereof. 

The undersigned hereby further certifies that such requisition contains no item 
representing payment on account of any retained percentage which the District is at the date of 
such certificate entitled to retain. 

Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the property acquired 
or services rendered with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 

PINE RIDGE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: 
Responsible Officer 

Date: 

CONSULTING ENGINEER’S APPROVAL FOR 
NON-COST OF ISSUANCE REQUESTS ONLY 

With respect to requisitions which are for disbursement for other than Costs of Issuance, 
the undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of 
the Series 2006A/B/2020 Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or 
construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the portion of the Series 2006A/B/2020 
Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii) the report of the 
Consulting Engineer, as such report shall have been amended or modified on the date hereof. 

Consulting Engineer 
Date:  March 26, 2021 



Invoice
Date

3/26/2021

Invoice #

WO #57-1

Bill To

Pine Ridge Plantation CDD

Ship To

Hoffman Commercial Construction, LLC
CGC 1514994
6919 Distribution Ave. S, Suite 5
Jacksonville, FL 32256

S.O. No. P.O. No. Terms Project

WO #57 Pine Ridge ...

Phone #

(904) 271-2350

Web Site

www.hoffmancommercial.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/C redits

Item Description Invoiced Rate AmountOrdered Prev. Invoi...

Const. Draw Construction Draw - Budgeting Services for
Pine Ridge Plantation CDD

1,100.00 1,100.00

$1,100.00

$1,100.00

$0.00



Ernesto J. Torres, District Manager
 February 25, 2021



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 

4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida 32068 

904-509-6445 

Date:   May 24, 2021 

To:  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD, Board of Supervisors 

From:  Maria Cranford, Amenity Manager & 

  Thomas Chewning, Operations Manager 

Re:   Monthly Facility Memorandum 

 

Completed Items: 

• New handicap chair lift was installed on March 22nd  
• Bent rod was replaced on back gate near the pool equipment area 
• Repairs were made to the doorframe of the men’s restroom on the 

poolside  
• One of the shower spray features on the splash ground was re-attached 
• A cracked toilet seat was replaced in the women’s restroom  
• New junction box was installed along pathway to replace previous broken 

box that was showing exposed wires 
• Graffiti was removed from one of the light poles near the field  
• Dirt was removed from curb along Pine Ridge Parkway, from Night Owl to 

Buggy Whip 
• Sidewalk around playground was pressure washed 
• Repairs were made to the shower on the pool deck 
• Buildup of trash was cleaned up from around the amenity center dumpster 
• Several stacked stones from the pool deck pillars were re-attached 
• Repairs were made to two of the tables in the clubhouse 
• RMS continues to do weekly checks of the dog pot stations. Stations are 

emptied and refilled as needed 

 



Landscaping & Lakes: 

• Down to Earth continues to maintain the grounds throughout. 
• Lake Doctor’s continues to maintain the lakes. 
• RMS continues to inspect and clean all the lakes and outfall structures.  

 

Amenity Manager: 

• Total number of rentals currently scheduled for April, May and June = 34 
• Audit of access card applications was completed to help ensure that 

everyone accessing the facility is in fact still a resident 
• A dive in movie night is being planned for this summer 
• New elliptical machines were installed on April 6th 
• New umbrellas were purchased for the tables on the pool deck 
• North Florida Vending continues to service and stock the soda machine 
• Jackpot Vending continues to service and stock the snack machine 
• Mike’s Yum Yum Come Get Ya Sum truck was at the amenity center on 

March 29th from 5 to 8 p.m. 
• Hibashi Party was at the amenity center on March 31st from 5 to 8 p.m. 
• Frozen Sweets Truck was at the amenity center on Easter Sunday from 2 to 

6 p.m.  
• Le Petite Cheri Cupcakery was at the amenity center on April 8th and again 

on May 5th from 5 to 8 p.m. They are scheduled to return on June 2nd with 
the Butt Hutt Smokehouse 

• Nitrogen Creamery was at the amenity center on April 28th from 5 to 8 p.m. 
• 904 Gyros was at the amenity center on April 8th from 5 to 8 p.m.  
• 904 Saffron was at the amenity center on April 14th from 5 to 8 p.m. 
• Frozen Sweets Treat truck was at the amenity center on April 24th from 4 to 

7 p.m. 
• San Marco Chz Fry Co was scheduled to be at the amenity center on May 

11th from 5 to 8 p.m. but had to cancel due to the weather 
• Hibashi Party was at the amenity center from 5 to 8 p.m. on May 13th  
• Zydeco Cajun Grill is scheduled to be at the amenity center on May 19th, 

June 16th and July 14th from 5 to 8 p.m. 



• 904 Burgers is scheduled to be at the amenity center on May 27th from 5 to 
8 p.m. 

• Food Addictz on the Run is scheduled to be at the amenity center on June 
10th and again on July 8th from 5 to 8 p.m.  

• San Marco Chz Fry Co is scheduled to return to the amenity center on June 
15th and again on July 20th from 5 to 7:30 p.m. 

• Hapa Li is scheduled to be at the amenity center on May 18th, June 22nd and 
July 27th from 5 to 7:30 p.m. 

• Abstrakt Filipino Essence is scheduled to be at the amenity center on June 
8th and again on July 7th from 5 to 8 p.m. 

• Brochachos Fusion Eats is scheduled to be at the amenity center on June 
23rd and again on July 21st from 5 to 8 p.m. 

• Starting July 7th and the first Wednesday of each month following, Le Petite 
Cheri Cupcakery will be at the amenity center from 5 to 8 p.m. 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 A special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Monday, December 14, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at the Pine Ridge 

Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Arp Vice Chairman 
 Jerry Ritchie Supervisor 
 Jeff Lewis Supervisor 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Ernesto Torres District Manager 

Wes Haber via phone    District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Larry Edmiston 
 Mike Lucas 
  
  
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Torres called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m., and a quorum was present.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Mr. Torres asked for any public comments on agenda items from anyone attending via 

Zoom (Was Zoom an option for this meeting?). Hearing no audience comments, the next item 

followed. 

 

 

 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Agreement with Basham 
and Lucas Design Group, Inc. for 
Professional Architectural Design Services  

 Mr. Torres stated that the agreement had been prepared by Wes Haber their District 

Counsel, and the exhibit on Page 11 is the form of Work Authorization that lists the costs of the 

services. He noted that him and Mr. Mike Lucas had conversations prior to the meeting to give 

him an idea of the discussions that the Board had been considering. Mr. Torres had asked Mr. 

Lucas to be present at the meeting so that he could get a more defined set of information and 

guidance from the Board.  

 Mr. Lucas asked if the Board had any questions on the proposal. 

 Mr. Ritchie stated that the document noted that there was a construction manager to 

coordinate the project instead of a general contractor. Mr. Haber responded that with respect to 

estimated costs, the engineer would be asked to give his best estimate on what the cost would be 

before they would go out for a request for proposals for the particular work. He added that 

depending on what they were having constructed, the expectation would be that they would do 

an RFP for a General Contractor and that there would be some oversight on the part of Basham 

Lucas. He noted that the reference to the construction manager in the agreement was an error on 

his part and that the was no expectation that there would be a different party other than a 

contractor that would be hired to do the work with Basham Lucas designing and overseeing the 

work as far as quality and approval.  

 Mr. Lucas explained that he would work with them to prepare a set of construction 

drawings and they would compare drawings based on wish lists so that they could bid items out 

while getting pricing for each component so that if they decided that they  didn’t want to do it 

all at one time, they could at least have an idea of what the future costs would be. 

 Mr. Ritchie asked if that would also include inspection services, to which Mr. Lucas 

responded yes. He added that they were currently completing the Amenity Center at another 

CDD and that he went out there once a week to review what was being done. He noted that he 

would come to check on the project as often as needed from the District, whether it be once a 

week to once a month to review payouts. 

 Mr. Biagetti responded that once they conceptualized the project and came to an 

agreement on a plan that was put in motion, they would be good to go. 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

3 

 Mr. Lucas stated that they would start off with a conceptual side-plan based on what their 

expectations were. He noted that he knew that the district had an Engineer’s Report prepared by 

AT&M, adding he was curious as to how they arrived at the costs and figures presented on the 

report and if they actually correlated with what they wanted. 

 Mr. Biagetti replied that the figures were mostly accurate to what they had initially 

discussed that some figures were based on estimates on what had been done previously at other 

places so they were not 100% accurate. He added that he thought it was a good starting point as 

far as the ideas that the board had together.      

 Mr. Ritchie asked Mr. Lucas if he had ever installed a saltwater pool for a commercial 

development for a CDD, and Mr. Lucas replied that he had only done chlorine pools before. He 

added that if they wanted to do a saltwater pool down the road, they could bring in a contractor 

to compare the differences between the two. 

 Mr. Torres asked for Mr. Haber to correct the language in the agreement that alluded to 

a “construction manager” and asked for the agreement to be approved in substantial form. 

 Mr. Haber noted that the agreement, as drafted, contemplated an hourly rate for hourly 

work that they may have Basham Lucas do. He added that typically, the parties will negotiate 

some lump service contract where if they were going to prepare plans for improvements, they 

could say that they could prepare a set of plans for a certain cost. He noted that they would then 

enter into a separate work authorization under the agreement that was currently being considered, 

which would specify the work that needed to be done and the lump sum cost of that work. Mr. 

Haber added that the agreement that they were currently approving did not have that level of 

specificity, but that it was certifying Basham Lucas as the architect for the district under an 

hourly rate. He clarified out that if they wanted to do a lump sum agreement instead, it would be 

done through a separate work authorization between both parties. 

 Mr. Torres asked Mr. Lucas if that was something that he would bring back to the board 

at a later time, and Mr. Lucas replied that he believed so. He clarified that what they would have 

to do is develop the scope on an hourly basis and come up with a conceptual site plan, and that 

once that was signed off on, they would come up with a lump sum figure to do the construction 

drawings. 

 Mr. Torres asked Mr. Lucas if he would have some idea of the scope by the time they 

left the meeting after the agreement was approved, to which Mr. Lucas replied that he would. 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

4 

 Mr. Torres asked for a motion in substantial form to approve the agreement for the hourly 

rates, subject to Mr. Haber making the corrections previously stated.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Nazario with all in 
favor, the Agreement with Basham and Lucas Design Group, Inc. 
for Professional Architectural Designs Services, was approved in 
substantial form. 

 

 Mr. Torres asked that they go over the scope before moving on to the next item, and Mr. 

Lucas agreed. Mr. Torres listed the requested items that needed to be completed per the 

Engineer’s Report, including the Amenity Center, the pool expansion, a water tot-lot playground 

or a splashpad, and the sport activities center where the Board had discussed bringing a court 

center that included tennis, pickleball, and basketball in a fenced area with security. He pointed 

out there was also as soccer field, playground, pocket parks, with the last item being an expansion 

of the fitness room and pool deck. 

 Mr. Biagetti stated that they had a pretty good idea financially of what they could do, but 

that projects such as the pool expansion and the splashpad were up in the air as they relied on 

what they could afford and the space that they had, adding that the pool expansion was still one 

of their top priorities. 

 Mr. Lucas stated that the budget listed was $1.4 million, and that the first thing they 

would want to do is make sure is that the current pool was adequate to solve the number of units 

they had, and that the pool they wanted was above and beyond that. He added that any type of 

pool that they would like to add would be under 2,500 square feet due to the fact that he would 

only have to add one facility each for the men’s and women’s bathrooms. He noted that Mr. 

Torres had discussed having a lap lane style, and that lap lanes are usually 7 feet by 75 feet, so 

he could do 4 of those while still being under the 2,500 square feet criteria. He pointed out that 

they could also do something bigger if they wanted, but that it was just a place to start. He stated 

that a rough estimate of the pool could be between $120 and $148 per square feet, but that he 

had talked to one pool company that could get them a pool under 2,500 square feet for $350,000. 

He noted that he noticed the budget was at $450,000 and that they could get between 4,000 and 

5,000 square feet of pool deck above that as well as landscaping with the extra $100,000. He 

pointed out that they had a done a 1,200-foot splashpad at the Bartram Springs CDD that cost 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

5 

around $200,000 and $350,000 with the play features. He had also discussed the option of doing 

both with the same pool company, and the contractor had told Mr. Lucas that both could be done 

for $700,000 because they would be able to overlap the lap pool, the deck, and the play feature.   

  Mr. Lucas asked that the Board give him feedback as to what they were thinking of 

putting into the community, and he could see what he could get with the $1.4 million. He added 

that he would like to know how many pickleball and tennis courts they wanted, and noted that 

pickleball courts cost around $45,000 and tennis courts $60,000. He also wanted to know if 

tennis was really a popular activity in the community. He summarized that, depending on what 

the Board was looking for, he could maximize the $1.4 million to suit their needs. He noted that 

he understood that $150,000 of that total was for miscellaneous projects throughout the 

community and asked if they wanted him to take it out or leave it in the total. 

 Mr. Biagetti pointed out that some of their pool equipment were approximately 15 to 20 

years old, and suggested that the $150,000 be used towards that, and asked Ms. Cranford how 

many showers were within each of the men’s and women’s bathrooms, to which she answered 

that the men’s had 2 showers, and the women’s had 1 shower and a changing area.  

 Mr. Biagetti asked if they could renovate those as part of the project, and Mr. Lucas asked 

if he had plans of the existing building, and he responded that he had been trying to get them 

from the city for a while with no success.  

 Mr. Torres added that the other factor they would have to take into account is the distance, 

and Mr. Lucas responded that bathrooms had to be within 250 square feet.  

 Mr. Lucas asked what year the facility was built, to which members of the Board 

answered 2007 or 2008. Mr. Lucas stated that they should still have the documents and plans on 

record. He also added that they could find out who the original architect was and see if they had 

the original plans. 

 Mr. Biagetti asked if 250 square feet was the cutoff, and between 250 feet and 5,000 feet, 

every increment required more fixtures. 

 Mr. Lucas noted that anything under 250 feet would only require 1 fixture each for the 

men and women. 

 Mr. Biagetti added that one of the requests from the women residents was that they add 

in a tanning/sun-bathing deck area.  



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

6 

 Mr. Lucas replied that it had been done at one other CDD, and they had some issues 

because there were restrictions as to what you can and cannot do at a public pool. 

 Mr. Lucas asked if the Board wanted to prioritize the pool and splashpad together, or if 

they wanted to prioritize the pool by itself. 

 Mr. Biagetti responded that if they could get the splashpad built in with the pool it would 

be a greater savings for the district, and then have the courts be second priority. He added that 

the playgrounds be a third priority. 

 Mr. Lucas pointed out that if they wanted to hold the $150,000 out of the $1.4 million, it 

would have to go out to bid and they could work with contractors directly for the playground. 

He then asked what they were looking at as far as expanding the fitness center, and asked how 

congested the area was when people were using it. 

 Ms. Cranford responded that the fitness center was becoming increasingly congested due 

to residents giving up their memberships to larger gym companies and continuing their workouts 

at the CDD fitness center instead. 

 Mr. Nazario added that he had gone into the center a few days prior and there were around 

8 people in the facility in the middle of the afternoon, which was considered a lot compared to 

the usual. 

 Mr. Lucas asked how much they were wanting to expand the size, and Ms. Cranford 

suggested that they could at least double the space. Mr. Lucas gave the Board a ballpark price of 

around $250 a square foot.  

 Mr. Biagetti pointed out that it would be possible to double it if they configured the 

hallway in a different way and using a different bar top.  

 Mr. Lucas stated that they could look at different options, adding that fitness within the 

amenities of a CDD were extremely popular at the moment and a large selling point. 

 Mr. Nazario asked the Board if the fitness center was more important than the courts, and 

Mr. Biagetti replied that both were as equally important. 

 Mr. Lucas noted that because the pool was the top priority, they were looking at doing 

the pool and the splashpad together, but that if the fitness center was just as important, he didn’t 

want to exhaust all the funds in that. 

 Mr. Biagetti pointed out that Ms. Cranford had put out a Facebook survey for what sport 

residents would like to play the most, and the top response was tennis. He stated that, as a Board, 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

7 

they could not overlook what the residents want because they were there to represent a 

community. 

 Mr. Lucas stated that two tennis courts would cost $120,000, adding that he wanted to 

point out that whatever they ended up choosing would be an “either/or” not an “and” decision as 

to whether they wanted tennis or pickleball.  

 Mr. Biagetti noted that pickleball had its own director currently as well as the fact that 

they were giving lessons. He added that the nets required for pickleball were relatively cheap 

and that they could get portable ones on wheels as well. He suggested that they put lines down 

for pickleball on the tennis court, and they could just wheel off the pickleball nets against the 

fence. 

 Mr. Lucas replied that he had done that at another district, where they had one tennis 

court that split into two pickleball courts with different colored striping and portable nets.  

 Mr. Biagetti added that he did not think that the courts would be overrun with people 

playing tennis, however if they had two tennis courts, they wouldn’t have to worry about the 

issue. 

 Mr. Biagetti asked how it was going to affect the existing parking, and Mr. Lucas replied 

that even though they were expanding the amenities, they were not expanding the client base. 

 Mr. Nazario pointed out that it had been stated that the pool was okay for the number of 

residents that the CDD had, but asked if that number included the number of new units that were 

being added to the community, to which Mr. Biagetti responded that it was built to the 750 units. 

 Mr. Haber (I think this was someone else.) added that Covid-19 was forcing people to 

build a new lifestyle, and Mr. Nazario pointed out that that would lead to more residents using 

the facilities.  

 Mr. Lucas asked if they were wanting to do a sun shelf at the pool, and Mr. Biagetti stated 

that lap pools were a greater priority for the residents.  

 Mr. Lucas suggested that they could increase the area to the full 2,500 square feet, and 

use 2,100 of it for the lap pool and the latter 400 for a sun shelf. He added that the pool would 

be a priority no matter what, and that the fitness center would be second priority. He pointed out 

that it would be great if he could get all three components done, but that he wanted to focus on 

the most-needed items first. He noted that he would look at doing a tennis and pickleball court 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

8 

and a multicourt, as well as that he would take out the $150,000 so that the district could do the 

playground project themselves and that he would work with the $1.3 million. 

 Mr. Biagetti also added that lighting should be a key component as well, so that there 

was a timer set on all the lights for around 5:30 p.m. to 9 p.m. so that residents could use them 

in the evenings. He also asked what they had budgeted for the fitness expansion, and Mr. Lucas 

replied that they had $350,000 set aside, $450,000 for the pool expansion, the sports field had 

$250,000, the playground enhancement was $150,000, and the renovation of the fitness 

amenities to expand the pool deck was $350,000. 

 Mr. Nazario asked if they had anything set aside for slide replacements, to which Mr. 

Ritchie responded that that was taken out of Capital Reserves.  

 Mr. Lucas asked if they had someone to do the upkeep on the pool equipment, to which 

Mr. Biagetti responded that they did, Mr. Lucas suggested that the Board discuss with that entity 

about evaluating the equipment to get a cost estimate when they can expect to replace something. 

 Mr. Haber (I think this was someone else) stated that he would get in contact with them. 

 Mr. Arp asked Mr. Lucas if he had heard correctly that if they stayed in the square footage 

that was recommended, they would have a seven-lane pool. 

 Mr. Lucas corrected him, stating that there would be only 4 lanes, but that the lanes were 

7 feet wide. 

 Mr. Arp noted that in that case, a lap pool might not be the best solution due to the high 

number of complaints that they receive from residents during the summer months. He added that 

they would have a better usage out of a regular pool instead of a lap pool. 

 Mr. Lucas replied that the lap pool would not be continuously used for laps, but that it 

would be during certain hours of the day. 

 Mr. Arp pointed out that he did not think that a lap pool would solve the issue of 

complaints during the summer. 

 Mr. Nazario asked Ms. Cranford, based on her knowledge, if they would be able to satisfy 

the requirements of regular pool use by limiting the use of the lanes. 

 Ms. Cranford replied that if the lanes were removable, that it would. 

 Mr. Arp didn’t realize that they were removable, and that in that case, he agreed.  

 Mr. Biagetti asked Mr. Arp if he was alright with everything else, to which he responded 

that he thought everything else was on par with the survey that Ms. Cranford had sent out. 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

9 

 Mr. Lucas stated that he would go around and take pictures of the facility before leaving. 

 Mr. Torres thanked Mr. Lucas for coming, adding that January 19th was their next 

meeting if he wanted to join then with more information. 

  

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Chairlift Proposal  
 Mr. Torres stated that this item was something that the Board had wanted to delay due to 

the warranties, and asked Mr. Edmiston to elaborate. 

 Mr. Edmiston stated that he had done extensive research on warranties for chairlifts and 

what they were willing to offer on any of them, and found that the maximum warranty was at 2 

years. He noted that extended warranties could be purchased, and explained that the extended 

warranty was a maintenance program that was on a yearly basis. He stated that if they did get a 

new chairlift he would have maintenance from RMS check it biweekly or monthly to make sure 

that everything is up to par. He added that this would eliminate the need for a maintenance 

program considering that RMS was already at the community several times a week. He noted 

that the old chairlift had been sitting there with no use for quite some time and that there was no 

warranty left on it, so the best option would be to purchase a new one. 

 Mr. Ritchie asked if it was the corrosion on the batteries from the chlorine that was 

causing the problems, and Mr. Edmiston replied that it was. He also suggested that what should 

happen if the chair was used and there was a chlorine issue, it should be hosed down on a regular 

basis of once or twice a month. He also added that a cover should be put on it when it was not in 

use, and that when it was in use, the cover should be hung up and put back on after use. He noted 

that he could have Maria check it every day to make sure the cover is kept on it. 

 Mr. Edmiston stated that the chairlift costs that he had been looking at were mostly the 

same, but that the only difference was shipping, with those costs being $56, $42, and $33. He 

added that that was for the 400-pound capacity, and that they wouldn’t have to worry about an 

anchor because they could use the one that was already there.  

 Ms. Cranford stated that she had some answers for Mr. Arp for questions that he had had 

at the previous meeting. She noted that she was not able to find the date that the chair was actually 

purchased, but that she had found emails between Mandy and Karen that were dated from May 

of 2014 to March of 2015 where the chairs were malfunctioning. 



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

10 

 Mr. Ritchie also pointed out that the chair capacity of the old chair was a lot less than the 

400 pounds, and he went with the heavier-duty chair so that it was less wear on the mechanical 

components of it.  

 Mr. Nazario asked what the name of the company was, and Mr. Edmiston replied that it 

was SR Smith. He also stated that the model that he had presented were the 300-0000N which 

was the 400-pound capacity and without the anchor. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Ritchie, seconded by Mr. Biagetti, with all in  
favor, the Chairlift Proposal from SR Smith, totaling $5,642.33, 
was approved. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  

  Mr. Torres noted that Mr. Haber was no longer on the phone due to a family emergency, 

but added that if the Board had any questions for him, he would pass them along. 

  

B. District Manager  
 Mr. Torres stated he had nothing further to report. 

 

C. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

D. Operations Manager  
 Mr. Edmiston stated that he would have all the information for things moving forward 

for the next meeting as far as the chairlift. Mr. Edmiston asked if the Board had any questions, 

and Mr. Ritchie asked if they should look at proposals for playgrounds or if they should wait. 

 Mr. Edmiston added that he could bring proposals for playgrounds if the Board would 

like, and Mr. Biagetti added that there was dry rot occurring on some of the boards of the 

playground equipment. Mr. Edmiston replied that he would bring back different proposals using 

different types of materials for the Board at the next meeting. 

 

E. Amenity Manager  



December 14, 2020  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

11 

 Ms. Cranford noted that they were having the community holiday event this coming 

Saturday and that would start planning for spring holidays after the winter holidays. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments/Supervisor’s Requests 
 Audience Comments: 
 There being none, the next item was followed.  

  

 Supervisor Requests:  

  Mr. Biagetti had a complaint from a resident that lives on his street that there were issues 

with Down to Earth employees speeding down the side street with children playing outside. The 

resident had called the office at Down to Earth and they said that it would take care of it but that 

it was still occurring. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 1/19/21 @ 6:00 
p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 
Center  

 Mr. Torres stated the next scheduled meeting is January 19, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. He added 

that items that would be discussed would be the playground structure and roof proposals. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti seconded by Mr. Ritchie with all in 
favor the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The Special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation 

Community Development District was held on Tuesday, February 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the 

Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Arp Vice Chairman 
 Jerry Ritchie Supervisor 
 Jeff Lewis Supervisor 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Ernesto Torres District Manager 

Wes Haber by phone    District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Mike Lucas Basham & Lucas 
 Bill Wilber Basham & Lucas 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Torres called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All five Board members were present 

constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 

 Mr. Torres asked for any public comments on agenda items from anyone attending via 

Zoom. Hearing no audience comments, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Architectural Conceptual 
Design “Final Draft”  

 Mr. Torres stated that there was a meeting in January where the Board had some 

modifications to the first draft of the conceptual design. Their comments and concerns were 



February 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

taken into consideration and two representatives from Basham & Lucas were present to answer 

any questions the Board had about the newest design. The representatives walked the Board 

through the new plans and presented some new concepts and designs.  

 The architects and the Board went back and forth with lengthy conversation about the 

best direction to go in for the community including expanding the fitness center and adding 

outdoor fitness space. It was a big question if residents would rather have an outdoor exercise 

space due to Covid-19. The Board talked about doing the expansion, and then adding the outdoor 

space at a later time as an option. It was decided to focus on the expansion.  

  The conversation continued, the Board talked about necessary sidewalk access and 

keycard usage for outdoor amenities and how they can utilize the plans and space to cut down 

on some of those costs.  

 Chairman Biagetti offered his thoughts which included liking the one access point, 

keeping the sidewalks as they are planned for, and the 10’ fence for the tennis court. It was 

clarified that there would need to be a pass through from the tennis court to the basketball court 

with a swing gate or clear opening between the two. The exit being on the north side with push 

exit and the entrance being on the southside, closest to the parking lot, with included keycard 

access.  

 The next step is to get a cost estimate for the improvements. Mr. Torres asked Mr. Lucas 

how much he thinks a cost estimate will be and he believes it will be less than $5,000. He will 

need to have a few conversations and bring an actual number back to the Board. The time frame 

is up in the air as well because contractors are busy right now. Mr. Biagetti suggests a “not to 

exceed” amount of $5,000 to get the project rolling. Mr. Haber, District counsel, approved the 

idea of the “not to exceed” as long as the Board is comfortable with those terms. Once the cost 

estimate is received, they might want to go out for public bid if the bidding thresholds exceed 

approximately $395,000 for a single construction project. There will then be a specific RFP 

process the Board must go through and a specific package that the Board must approve with a 

30-day time frame from when a project goes to advertisement and when the Board can review 

proposals. All that to be said, if the expectation is that cost estimates are available at the next 

meeting and the Board is wanting to approve certain aspects of the project and start the 

procurement process, this needs to be kept in mind because there will need to be a resolution 



February 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

3 

prepared that would authorize the RFP process. If the March meeting needs to be adjusted for 

this, that is also a possibility.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Nazario, seconded by Mr. Lewis, with all in 
favor, A Not to Exceed Amount of $5,000 for Construction Cost 
Estimate Costs, was approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments/Supervisor’s Requests 
 District Manager’s Report:  
 Mr. Torres addressed the Board with a couple informational items. The first being the 

District received a notice from an application fee from Clay Utilities February 5th for $10,000 

for a meter hookup. He has contacted the developer, Richmond Builder, who is building the last 

phase of homes and they will be taking care of that cost because the District never requested that 

hookup.  

 Mr. Haber addressed the Board with the potential of a pending lawsuit. There was an 

injury, and the understanding is there was a dog bite in the community that took place on private 

property. It did not happen on CDD property and he believes the only reason the CDD was 

named was because the incident happened within the boundaries of the CDD, and the insurance 

company is taking the position, but he believes there is no case and a very small likelihood that 

the CDD holds any liability. Mr. Haber along with Mr. Torres will continue to update the Board 

if there are any new developments or further concerns.   

 Mr. Torres stated that at the last Board of Supervisor’s meeting there was a 

recommendation to add landscaping to the area where there is a self-made golfcart path. The 

recommendation is to add 180 fountain grass red plants in the area with a price of $3,720. He 

will let RMS present this item at the next scheduled meeting. 

  
 Public Comments: 
 There being none, the next item was followed.  

  

 Supervisor Requests:  

   Mr. Nazario wants clarification for the next steps for the design process. They need to 

hire a construction firm who will have a better cost understanding of the actual project to go 

from paper to process. That will determine and give them a better idea of what they truly can 



February 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

4 

plan for as terms of dollars and cents from the plans and then the architect can make changes 

accordingly. Mr. Nazario then asked who will put an RFP together after the cost estimate is 

received. Mr. Torres answered that it will be a collaboration between the engineer and district 

counsel. Mr. Haber offered an exact break down on how the RFP will be prepared. Mr. Nazario 

then asked when the contract is awarded, is it awarded to one big contractor or several 

contractors. Mr. Haber answered that the flexibility for that lies with the Board and how they 

decide to move forward.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 3/16/21 @ 6:00 
p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 
Center  

 Mr. Torres stated the next scheduled meeting is scheduled for March 16, 2021 at 6:00 

p.m.    

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Lewis, with all in 
favor, the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community 

Development District was held on Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 6:05 p.m. at the Pine Ridge 

Plantation Amenity Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Arp Vice Chairman 
 Jerry Ritchie Supervisor 
 Jeff Lewis Supervisor 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Ernesto Torres District Manager 

Wes Haber by phone    District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Mike Lucas Bashaum & Lucas 
 Tom Chewning RMS 
 Marilee Giles GMS, LLC 
   
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Torres called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. and a quorum was present.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 

 Mr. Torres asked for any public comments on agenda items from anyone attending via 

Zoom. Hearing no audience comments, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Audit Criteria and 
Authorization to Publish an RFP  

 Mr. Torres asked to make a recommendation for the Board to approve the audit criteria 

and authorization to publish an RFP. 



March 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Lewis, with all in 
favor, the Audit Criteria and Authorization to Publish an RFP, was 
approved. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal from Down to 
Earth for West Landscape Improvements  

 Mr. Torres stated that the landscaping plans are in the agenda package. The developer is 

installing the landscape and will pay for it and the District will take over the maintenance once 

it is conveyed to the District. There is also an irrigation that is tied into this project and the Board 

will have to maintain it. Tom will be in communication with Down to Earth to find out how 

much this will cost to maintain. The time frame for this project is unknown at this time.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Basham & Lucas Proposal 
and Work Authorization Part 1 & Part 2 

 Mr. Lucas stated that everything is included in the cost summary based on the last sketch 

provided. It includes an additional 300 square feet on fitness, the new splash park, the new 

swimming pool, the new deck around the swimming pool. It also includes the four shade 

structures added, the two tennis courts, the half basketball courts with fence around them. This 

estimate includes anything a contractor would charge all the way down to construction fees, all 

the design fees. Only thing not included is the civil engineer which isn’t typically under the 

contract and is a separate line item. The total amount came out to $1,521,995. The break down 

is included in the agenda package. Wes will prepare Basham & Lucas work authorization for 

architectural services for part 1 and part 2. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Ritchie, with all in 
favor, the Basham & Lucas Proposal and Work Authorization Part 
1 & Part 2, was approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney – Ratification of E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding 

  Mr. Haber noted that they had sent a memo stating that CDD’s were obligated to comply 

with the new E-Verify system. He explained what the premise was, summarizing that it was a 

tool used by the Department of Homeland Security to ensure that employers were verifying that 



March 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

3 

any employees hired were legally qualified to work. He also noted that in any future agreements 

a provision would be required that obligated contractors to use the E-Verify system as well.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Nazario, seconded by Mr. Biagetti, with all 
in favor, the E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding, 
was ratified. 

 

B. District Manager  
 Mr. Torres stated he had nothing further to report. 

 

C. Engineer 

 There being none, the next item followed.  

 

D. Operations Manager  
i. Report 

 Mr. Chewning went over the Operations Report which was located in your agenda 

package.  

 

ii. Discussion of Barrier to Block Golfcart Cut Through 

 Mr. Chewning tabled discussion of barrier to block golfcart cut through. Maria to obtain 

quote for fencing 3 and 4 railing as appropriate. 

 

iii. Update Parking Lot and Playground Lighting 

 Mr. Chewning noted the lighting has been updated in the parking lot and the playground 

area. 

 

iv. Update Replacement of Rotting Wood Beam 

 Mr. Chewning tabled discussion of replacement of wood beam. Maria to reach out to 

Dicky Smith reference original contractor of the beam. Ernesto to discuss the staging and 

timeline to replace the beam with Mike Lucas. 

 

  



March 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

4 

v. Consideration of Vinyl White PVC Fence Along Section of Tynes 
Boulevard 

 Mr. Chewning tabled discussion of vinyl white PVC fence along section of Tynes 

Boulevard. Maria to combine this with golfcart cut though cost estimate. 

 

E. Amenity Manager  

 Ms. Cranford noted she didn’t have much else outside the memo which is provided in 

the agenda package. She did note that 2 elliptical machines were out of order. They are getting 

replaced under warranty. They were delivered to the property today and it will be next week 

before the old ones are gone and new ones brought in and setup.  

 There will be an Easter event Saturday March 20th from 3:00 to 6:00 p.m. that will include 

petting zoos, pony rides, bounce house, and easter egg hunt. Also will have community yard 

sale April 10th and April 11th.  

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments/Supervisor’s Requests 
 Public Comments: 
 There being none, the next item was followed.  

  

 Supervisor Requests:  

  There being none, the next item was followed  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 19, 2021 Meeting 

 Mr. Torres presented the meeting minutes and asked if there were any questions. There 

being none, 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti seconded by Mr. Arp, with all in 
favor, the Meeting Minutes of the January 19, 2021 Meeting, were 
approved. 

 

B. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period 
Ending January 31, 2021 

 Mr. Torres pointed out earlier your capital project funds is $1,800,000.00 and your capital 

reserves is $352,000. He also pointed out page 3 on the general fund that the total expenditures 



March 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

5 

prorated amount of $215,000 and you were programmed to be at $215,000 through January 31, 

2021 and the actual amount spent was $173,000 which is $42,000 within budget.  

 

C. Assessment Receipts Schedule 

 Mr. Torres noted that the Assessment Receipts Schedule shows that they are at 98% 

collected. 

 

D. Approval of Check Register 

 Mr. Torres presented the check register from October 1st 2020 through December 31st 

2020 totaling $47,167.56. 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti seconded by Mr. Lewis, with all in 
favor, the Check Register, was approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 5/18/21 @ 6:00 
p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 
Center  

 Mr. Torres stated the next scheduled meeting was moved to May 24, 2021 at 6:00 P.M.  

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Arp seconded by Mr. Lewis with all in favor 
the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The Audit Committee meeting of the Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development 

District was held on Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. at the Pine Ridge Plantation Amenity 

Center, 4200 Pine Ridge Parkway, Middleburg, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 Matt Biagetti Chairman 
 Jeff Arp Vice Chairman 
 Jerry Ritchie Supervisor 
 Jeff Lewis Supervisor 
 Nelson Nazario Supervisor 
  
  
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Ernesto Torres District Manager 

Wes Haber by phone    District Counsel 
 Maria Cranford  Amenity Manager 
 Mike Lucas Basham & Lucas 
 Tom Chewning  RMS 
 Marilee Giles GMS, LLC 
   
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Torres called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and a quorum was present.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Review and Selection of Audit RFP Criteria 

 Mr. Torres stated that the criteria can be found in the agenda package under tab 3. This 

is the same evaluation criteria that has been used in years past. It breaks down each category of 

the ability of personnel for 20 points, proposer’s experience 20 points, understanding of scope 

of work 20 points, ability to furnish the required services 20 points, and price 20 points. By 

approving these criteria, the Board will trigger staff to send out RFPs to audit firms that have 

this kind of experience. This is the same exercise that has been used for years. 



March 16, 2021  Pine Ridge Plantation CDD 

2 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti, seconded by Mr. Arp, with all in 
favor, the Selection of Audit RFP Criteria, was approved. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business  
 Mr. Torres stated no other business for this meeting. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Biagetti seconded by Mr. Lewis with all in 
favor the Meeting was adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Governmental Fund Types
Capital Debt Capital Totals

General Reserve Service Projects 2021

ASSETS:

CASH $140,949 $145,997 --- --- $286,947
INVESTMENTS

Reserve A-1 --- --- $173,593 --- $173,593
Reserve A-2 --- --- $115,100 --- $115,100
Revenue A --- --- $920,163 --- $920,163
Interest A-1 --- --- $0 --- $0
Interest A-2 --- --- $0 --- $0
Construction --- --- --- $1,865,921 $1,865,921
Cost of Issuance --- --- --- $14,424 $14,424
State Board $465,937 $200,500 --- --- $666,436
US Bank Custody $416,072 --- --- --- $416,072
Prepaid Expneses $2,700 --- --- --- $2,700

TOTAL ASSETS $1,025,658 $346,497 $1,208,856 $1,880,344 $4,461,355

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $20,383 --- --- --- $20,383
ACCRUED EXPENSES $1,007 --- --- --- $1,007

FUND BALANCES:
     ASSIGNED $30,511 --- --- --- $30,511
     UNASSIGNED $971,056 --- --- --- $971,056
     RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE --- $1,208,856 --- $1,208,856
     RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS --- $346,497 --- $1,880,344 $2,226,841

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 
 & OTHER CREDITS $1,025,658 $346,497 $1,208,856 $1,880,344 $4,461,355

April 30, 2021
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

1



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 04/30/21 THRU 04/30/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Assessments - Tax Collector $538,283 $538,283 $534,536 ($3,747)
Misc./Facility Rental Income $3,000 $1,750 $2,500 $750
Interest Income $5,000 $2,917 $568 ($2,349)

TOTAL  REVENUES $546,283 $542,950 $537,604 ($5,346)

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors Fees/FICA Taxes $10,334 $6,028 $5,383 $646
Engineering $7,000 $4,083 $123 $3,961
Attorney $20,000 $11,667 $2,726 $8,941
Annual Audit $3,100 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $5,260 $0
Arbitrage $1,200 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $6,000 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $5,000 $2,917 $2,917 ($0)
Management Fees $44,290 $25,836 $25,836 $0
Computer Time $1,000 $583 $583 $0
Telephone $350 $204 $158 $47
Postage $1,000 $583 $376 $207
Printing & Binding $1,200 $700 $474 $226
Insurance $8,390 $8,390 $8,009 $381
Legal Advertising $2,500 $1,458 $513 $945
Other Current Charges $600 $350 $155 $195
Website Domain $1,200 $700 $700 $0
Office Supplies $300 $175 $85 $90
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES $118,899 $69,110 $53,471 $15,639

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:

Landscape Maintenance $100,000 $58,333 $50,874 $7,459
Lake Maintenance $9,300 $5,425 $5,290 $135
Electric $2,500 $1,458 $826 $632
Water $39,000 $22,750 $8,752 $13,998
Repairs And Maintenance $20,000 $11,667 $7,362 $4,305
Contingencies $4,451 $2,596 $0 $2,596

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES $175,251 $102,230 $73,105 $29,125

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

2



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 04/30/21 THRU 04/30/21 VARIANCE

GENERAL FUND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

EXPENDITURES:

AMENITY CENTER

Insurance $9,911 $9,911 $9,911 $0
General Facility Maintenance $15,000 $8,750 $6,429 $2,321
Repairs & Replacements $15,000 $8,750 $10,157 ($1,407)
Recreational Passes $500 $292 $1,897 ($1,605)
Postage $100 $58 $0 $58
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $73 $0 $73
Office Supplies $700 $408 $0 $408
Other Current Charges $250 $146 $0 $146
Permit Fees $250 $0 $0 $0
Contingency $5,000 $2,917 $459 $2,458
Special Events $12,000 $7,946 $7,946 $0
Refuse Service $6,816 $3,976 $4,058 ($82)
Security $10,000 $5,833 $2,570 $3,263
Gate Monitor $5,700 $3,325 $0 $3,325

Utilities
   Water & Sewer $3,700 $2,158 $2,099 $59
   Electric $23,000 $13,417 $11,119 $2,298
   Cable/Phone/Internet $3,300 $1,925 $2,057 ($132)

Management Contracts
Amenity Management $54,549 $31,820 $31,820 $0
Facility Assistant $18,561 $10,827 $588 $10,240
Field Management Services $21,321 $12,437 $12,437 $0
Lifeguards $16,500 $946 $946 $0
Pool Maintenance  $12,500 $7,292 $7,292 ($0)
Pool Chemicals $12,306 $7,179 $7,179 $0
Janitorial $7,740 $4,515 $4,515 $0
Janitorial Supplies $3,200 $1,867 $594 $1,273

AMENITY CENTER EXPENDITURES $258,029 $146,768 $124,072 $22,696

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Capital Projects - Transfer Out $24,614 $24,614 $24,614 $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $24,614 $24,614 $24,614 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $576,794 $342,722 $275,261 $67,461

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($30,511) $262,343

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $30,511 $741,924

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $1,004,267

3



1

ADOPTED
BUDGET Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep TOTAL

REVENUES:

Assessments - Tax Collector $538,283 $0 $13,994 $435,215 $78,988 $2,138 $816 $3,386 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $534,536
Interest Income $5,000 $148 $108 $83 $70 $56 $55 $49 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $568
Misc./Facility Rental Income $3,000 $300 $225 $225 $825 $0 $300 $625 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500

TOTAL  REVENUES $546,283 $448 $14,327 $435,523 $79,883 $2,194 $1,170 $4,060 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $537,604

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:

Supervisors Fees/FICA Taxes $10,334 $0 $1,077 $1,077 $1,077 $1,077 $1,077 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,383
Engineering $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123
Arbitrage $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Dissemination $5,000 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $417 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,917
Assessment Roll $5,260 $5,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,260
Attorney $20,000 $152 $943 $0 $0 $624 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,719
Annual Audit $3,100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trustee $6,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Fees $44,290 $3,691 $3,691 $3,691 $3,691 $3,691 $3,691 $3,691 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,836
Computer Time $1,000 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $583
Telephone $350 $0 $0 $0 $48 $33 $53 $23 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $158
Postage $1,000 $10 $143 $18 $151 $6 $15 $33 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $376
Printing & Binding $1,200 $146 $6 $160 $33 $55 $43 $31 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $474
Insurance $8,390 $8,009 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,009
Legal Advertising $2,500 $109 $110 $46 $46 $0 $103 $99 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $513
Other Current Charges $600 $15 $0 $112 $13 $0 $0 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $155
Website Domain $1,200 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $700
Office Supplies $300 $11 $0 $62 $0 $10 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $85
Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions $175 $0 $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES $118,899 $18,002 $6,744 $5,766 $5,658 $6,095 $5,705 $4,492 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $52,464

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE:
Landscape Maintenance $100,000 $7,240 $7,560 $7,160 $7,259 $7,160 $7,160 $7,335 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,874
Lake Maintenance $9,300 $670 $770 $770 $770 $770 $770 $770 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,290
Electric $2,500 $134 $135 $111 $113 $109 $110 $114 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $826
Water $39,000 $1,342 $1,561 $1,521 $1,121 $1,073 $1,028 $1,105 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,752
Repairs And Maintenance $20,000 $476 $877 $605 $171 $2,340 $2,893 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,362
Contingencies $4,451 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES $175,251 $9,862 $10,903 $10,167 $9,434 $11,452 $11,961 $9,324 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $73,105

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Month-to-Month

Fiscal Year 2021

4



1

ADOPTED
BUDGET Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep TOTAL

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
Month-to-Month

Fiscal Year 2021

AMENITY CENTER
Insurance $9,911 $9,911 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,911
General Facility Maintenance $15,000 $706 $826 $2,501 $245 $0 $2,052 $99 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,429
Repairs & Replacements $15,000 $2,297 $901 $969 $882 $1,770 $2,888 $450 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,157
Recreational Passes $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $949 $948 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,897
Postage $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Printing & Email Marketing $125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Office Supplies $700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Current Charges $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Permit Fees $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Contingency $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $459 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $459
Special Events $12,000 $3,393 $0 $2,462 $0 $0 $2,092 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,946
Refuse Service $6,816 $550 $550 $549 $600 $603 $610 $595 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,058
Security $10,000 $389 $389 $389 $529 $393 $393 $88 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,570
Gate Monitor $5,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Utilities
   Water & Sewer $3,700 $298 $292 $298 $292 $305 $311 $304 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,099
   Electric $23,000 $1,587 $1,477 $1,629 $1,884 $1,792 $1,435 $1,315 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,119
   Cable/Phone/Internet $3,300 $274 $274 $274 $308 $308 $308 $309 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,057
Management Contracts
Amenity Management $54,549 $4,546 $4,546 $4,546 $4,546 $4,546 $4,546 $4,546 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $31,820
Facility Assistant $18,561 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $588 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $588
Field Management Services $21,321 $1,777 $1,777 $1,777 $1,777 $1,777 $1,777 $1,777 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,437
Lifeguards $16,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $946 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $946
Pool Maintenance  $12,500 $1,042 $1,042 $1,042 $1,042 $1,042 $1,042 $1,042 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,292
Pool Chemicals $12,306 $1,026 $1,026 $1,026 $1,026 $1,026 $1,026 $1,026 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,179
Janitorial $7,740 $645 $645 $645 $645 $645 $645 $645 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,515
Janitorial Supplies $3,200 $75 $58 $99 $72 $130 $160 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $594

AMENITY CENTER EXPENDITURES $258,029 $28,514 $13,801 $18,205 $13,847 $14,337 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $124,072

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $552,180 $56,378 $31,449 $34,138 $28,940 $31,884 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $249,640
OTHER SOURCES/(USES):

Capital Projects - Transfer Out $24,614 $0 $0 $0 $24,614 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,614
EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($30,511) ($55,930) ($17,122) $401,385 $75,557 ($29,690) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $263,350

5



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 04/30/21 THRU 04/30/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Capital Reserve Funding - Transfer In $24,614 $24,614 $24,614 $0
Interest $0 $0 $212 $212

TOTAL  REVENUES $24,614 $24,614 $24,826 $212

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $20,000 $11,667 $0 $11,667
Culture/Recreation $20,001 $11,667 $5,611 $6,056

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $40,001 $23,334 $5,611 $17,723

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) ($15,387) $19,215

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $334,863 $327,282

FUND BALANCE - Ending $319,476 $346,497

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

6



9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 04/30/21 THRU 04/30/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Assessments  - Tax Roll $933,481 $933,481 $920,122 ($13,359)
Interest Income $3,000 $1,750 $31 ($1,719)

 TOTAL  REVENUES $936,481 $935,231 $920,153 ($15,078)

EXPENDITURES:
DS 2006
Interest Expense - 11/1 $277,155 $277,155 $0 $277,155
Principal Expense - 5/1 $380,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 5/1 $277,155 $0 $0 $0

DS 2020A1
Interest Expense - 11/1 $0 $0 $28,866 ($28,866)

DS 2020A2
Interest Expense - 11/1 $0 $0 $11,688 ($11,688)

         TOTAL EXPENDITURES $934,310 $277,155 $40,554 $236,601

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Other Bond Service Costs $0 $0 $0 $0
Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $2,171 $879,599

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $459,194 $329,257

FUND BALANCE - Ending $461,366 $1,208,856

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND 2006A/2020A1 and A2

7



9
ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 04/30/21 THRU 04/30/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Interest Income $0 $0 $60 $60

 TOTAL  REVENUES $0 $0 $60 $60

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0
Cost of Issuance $0 $0 $3,300 ($3,300)

         TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $3,300 ($3,300)

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $0 ($3,240)

FUND BALANCE - Beginning $0 $1,883,584

FUND BALANCE - Ending $0 $1,880,344

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 2006A/B/2020

8



Series 2020A1 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond
Original Issue Amount: $9,545,000
Interest Rate: 2.00% - 3.00%
Maturity Date: May 1, 2037
Reserve Fund Requirement: 25% of  Max Annual Debt Service

Bonds outstanding - 9/30/20 $9,545,000

Current Bonds Outstanding: $9,545,000

Series 2020A2 Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bond
Original Issue Amount: $2,890,000
Interest Rate: 2.75% - 3.75%
Maturity Date: May 1, 2037
Reserve Fund Requirement: 50% of  Max Annual Debt Service

Bonds outstanding - 9/30/20 $2,890,000

Current Bonds Outstanding: $2,890,000

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Long-term Debt Report

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



PINE RIDGE PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2021 SUMMARY OF ASSESSMENTS

ASSESSED
# UNITS 

ASSESSED
SERIES 2020A 

DEBT ASSESSED
FY20 O&M 
ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

NET TAX ROLL 737 926,571.52           538,283.13          1,464,854.65       

TOTAL ASSESSED NET 737 926,571.52           538,283.13 1,464,854.65      

RECEIVED BALANCE DUE
SERIES 2020A 

DEBT RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL RECEIVED
TAX ROLL 7,907.57              921,569.70           535,377.38          1,456,947.08       

TOTAL RECEIPTS 7,907.57              921,569.70           535,377.38 1,456,947.08      

SUMMARY OF TAX ROLL RECEIPTS
CLAY COUNTY 
DISTRIBUTION DATE RECEIVED

SERIES 2020 DEBT 
RECEIVED O&M RECEIVED TOTAL

1 11/18/2020 24,088.07             13,993.74            38,081.81            
2 12/1/2020 87,883.01             51,054.82            138,937.83          
3 12/4/2020 566,770.93           329,260.31          896,031.24          
4 12/17/2020 94,501.14             54,899.56            149,400.70          
5 1/14/2021 135,965.50           78,987.90            214,953.40          
6 2/19/2021 3,680.52               2,138.17              5,818.69              
7 3/19/2021 1,404.54               815.96 2,220.50              
8 4/12/2021 5,828.21               3,385.85              9,214.06              
9 5/11/2021 1,447.78               841.07 2,288.85              

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

TOTAL FY18 TAX ROLL RECEIPTS            921,569.70           535,377.38        1,456,947.08 

% TAX ROLL COLLECTED 99.46% 99.46% 99.46%
TOTAL COLLECTED 99.46% 99.46% 99.46%

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



Date Check Numbers Amount
 
General Fund

2/1/21 - 2/28/21   2769-2783 26,193.96$                   
3/1/21 - 3/31/21 2784-2801 35,319.49$                   
4/1/21 - 4/30/21 2802-2812 16,800.31$                   

78,313.76$                

Capital Reserves Fund

February 18, 2021 33 5,610.81$                     

5,610.81$                  

Utilities and Autopayments

February 9, 2021 Advanced Disposal 603.48$                        
February 16, 2021 SafeTouch 88.05$                         
February 25, 2021 Comcast 308.45$                        
February 25, 2021 Clay County Utilities 1,377.72$                     
March 1, 2021 Clay Electric 1,901.00$                     
March 9, 2021 Advanced Disposal 609.82$                        
March 16, 2021 SafeTouch 88.05$                         
March 25, 2021 Comcast 308.45$                        
March 25, 2021 Clay County Utilities 1,339.57$                     
March 29, 2021 Clay Electric 1,545.00$                     
April 15, 2021 Waste Management 595.35$                        
April 16, 2021 SafeTouch 88.05$                         
April 26, 2021 Comcast 308.81$                        
April 29, 2021 Clay Electric 1,429.08$                     
April 29, 2021 Clay County Utilities 1,409.03$                     

TOTAL UTILITIES PAID ONLINE OR AUTOPAY 11,999.91$                

  95,924.48$                

*Fedex invoices available upon request.

PINE RIDGE PLANTATION
Community Development District

Check Run Summary - General Fund

2/1/2021 - 4/30/2021



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 2/03/21 00107 1/15/21 SSI09913 202012 330-57200-34500                                     *               40.00
DEC EMPLOYEMENT FEE

1/15/21 SSI09913 202012 330-57200-34000                                     *               25.00
DEC SCHEDULING FEE

CLAY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE                                       65.00 002769
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/03/21 00001 1/19/21 72497898 202101 310-51300-42000                                     *              142.80

JAN POSTAGE
FEDEX                                                             142.80 002770

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/10/21 00003 2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,690.83

FEB MANAGEMENT FEES
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-49100                                     *              100.00

FEB WEBSITE ADMINISTRATIO
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-35100                                     *               83.33

FEB INFORMATION TECHNOLOG
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

FEB DISSEMINATION AGENT S
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-51000                                     *               10.33

OFFICE SUPPLIES
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-42000                                     *                5.52

POSTAGE
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-42500                                     *               54.90

COPIES
2/01/21 212      202102 310-51300-41000                                     *               33.24

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,394.82 002771

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/10/21 00073 2/01/21 355      202102 330-57200-46200                                     *              645.00

FEB JANITORIAL SERVICES
2/01/21 355      202102 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,041.67

FEB POOL MAINTENANCE SERV
2/01/21 355      202102 330-57200-34000                                     *            1,776.75

FEB CONTRACT ADMINISTRATI
2/01/21 355      202102 330-57200-34100                                     *            4,545.75

FEB FACILITY MANAGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               8,009.17 002772

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00069 2/04/21 320596   202101 310-51300-48000                                     *               46.00

NOTICE OF MEETING 2/4/21
CLAY TODAY                                                         46.00 002773

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00089 1/01/21 1494     202101 320-53800-46200                                     *            7,160.00

JAN LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
DOWN TO EARTH                                                   7,160.00 002774

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 2/22/21 00089 1/29/21 2227     202101 320-53800-46200                                     *               99.15
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

DOWN TO EARTH                                                      99.15 002775
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00109 1/14/21 S-10047  202101 330-57200-46100                                     *              494.72

HVAC REPAIR
HOWARD SERVICES, INC.                                             494.72 002776

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00169 2/02/21 7617     202102 330-57200-46100                                     *            1,300.00

PRESSURE WASHING ROOF
JOSHUA GODBY DBA GREENER VISION                                 1,300.00 002777

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00054 2/01/21 13129559 202102 330-57200-46500                                     *            1,025.52

FEB POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,025.52 002778

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00131 12/31/20 PSI39177 202012 330-57200-46000                                     *              671.75

FIRE SPRINKLER/ALARM INSP
PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY, INC.                                    671.75 002779

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00131 12/31/20 PSI39208 202012 330-57200-46000                                     *            1,140.00

MONITORING ANNUAL
PYE-BARKER FIRE & SAFETY, INC.                                  1,140.00 002780

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00073 2/15/21 356      202101 330-57200-46100                                     *              387.00

REPAIRS REPLACE AMENITY
2/15/21 356      202101 330-57200-46000                                     *              146.00

GEN FACILITY MAINTENANCE
2/15/21 356      202101 320-53800-46000                                     *              171.00

REPAIRS/MAINT GROUNDS
2/15/21 356      202101 330-57200-46201                                     *               72.33

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                                 776.33 002781

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00076 2/01/21 556675   202102 320-53800-46400                                     *              770.00

FEB LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              770.00 002782

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/22/21 00152 1/18/21 7205895  202101 330-57200-46000                                     *               98.70

QTR PEST CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL                                                98.70 002783

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/15/21 00106 12/30/20 12302020 202012 330-57200-34500                                     *              120.00

12/4/20 SECURITY SERVICE
12/30/20 12302020 202012 330-57200-34500                                     *              120.00

12/18/20 SECURITY SERVICE
MATTHEW EDMONSON                                                  240.00 002784

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 3/15/21 00106 2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               60.00
1/1/21 SECURTY SERVICE

2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               60.00
1/2/21 SECURITY SERVICE

2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               90.00
1/15/21 SECURITY SERVUCE

2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               30.00
1/16/21 SECURITY SERVICE

2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               90.00
1/29/21 SECURITY SERVICE

2/03/21 02032021 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               30.00
1/30/21 SECURITY SERVICE

MATTHEW EDMONSON                                                  360.00 002785
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/15/21 00106 3/08/21 03082021 202102 330-57200-34500                                     *              120.00

2/13/21 SECURITY SERVICE
3/08/21 03082021 202102 330-57200-34500                                     *              120.00

2/27/21 SECURITY SERVICE
MATTHEW EDMONSON                                                  240.00 002786

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/15/21 00073 3/01/21 357      202103 330-57200-46200                                     *              645.00

MAR JANITORIAL SERVICES
3/01/21 357      202103 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,041.67

MAR POOL MAINTENANCESERV
3/01/21 357      202103 330-57200-34000                                     *            1,776.75

MAR CONTRACT ADMINISTRATI
3/01/21 357      202103 330-57200-34100                                     *            4,545.75

MAR FACILITY MANAGEMENT P
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               8,009.17 002787

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/23/21 00003 3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,690.83

MAR MANAGEMENT FEES
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-49100                                     *              100.00

MAR WEBSITE ADMINSITRATIO
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-35100                                     *               83.33

MAR INFORMATION TECHNOLOG
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

MAR DISSEMINATION AGENT S
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-51000                                     *                1.05

OFFICE SUPPLIES
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-42000                                     *               15.14

POSTAGE
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-42500                                     *               43.05

COPIES
3/01/21 213      202103 310-51300-41000                                     *               53.20

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,403.27 002788

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 3/23/21 00073 11/05/20 348      202010 330-57200-60100                                     *            1,729.99
HALLOWEEN EVENT 10/31/20

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               1,729.99 002789
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00069 3/04/21 321879   202103 310-51300-48000                                     *              103.00

NOTICE MEETINGS 3/16/21
CLAY TODAY                                                        103.00 002790

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00080 3/03/21 03032021 202103 330-57200-49100                                     *              949.11

ACCESS CARDS
CONVERGINT TECHNOLOGIES LLC                                       949.11 002791

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00089 2/01/21 2500     202102 320-53800-46200                                     *            7,160.00

FEB LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
DOWN TO EARTH                                                   7,160.00 002792

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00089 3/01/21 5657     202103 320-53800-46200                                     *            7,160.00

MAR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
DOWN TO EARTH                                                   7,160.00 002793

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00039 2/09/21 24319    202102 330-57200-46100                                     *              470.36

REPLACE PADS
FITNESS PRO                                                       470.36 002794

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00039 3/27/21 24459    202102 330-57200-46201                                     *              130.00

GYM WIPES
FITNESS PRO                                                       130.00 002795

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00039 3/11/21 24544    202103 330-57200-46100                                     *              110.00

REPLACE ELEVATION BOLE
FITNESS PRO                                                       110.00 002796

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00109 3/09/21 S-10342  202103 330-57200-46100                                     *              367.50

A/C REPAIR
HOWARD SERVICES, INC.                                             367.50 002797

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00054 3/01/21 13129559 202103 330-57200-46500                                     *            1,025.52

MAR POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,025.52 002798

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00073 3/17/21 359      202103 330-57200-60100                                     *              891.57

EASTER EVENT 3/20/21
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                                 891.57 002799

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 3/30/21 00076 3/01/21 562603   202103 320-53800-46400                                     *              770.00

MAR LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              770.00 002800

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 3/30/21 00170 3/15/21 03152021 202103 330-57200-60100                                     *            1,200.00
EASTER EVEN 3/20/21

WORDS TO WORK MINISTRIES                                        1,200.00 002801
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/12/21 00003 4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,690.83

APRIL MANAGEMENT FEES
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-49100                                     *              100.00

APRIL WEBSITE ADMINISTRAT
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-35100                                     *               83.33

APRIL INFORMATION TECHNOL
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

APRIL DISSEMINATION AGENT
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .24

OFFICE SUPPLIES
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-42000                                     *               33.30

POSTAGE
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-42500                                     *               30.90

COPIES
4/01/21 214      202104 310-51300-41000                                     *               23.09

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,378.36 002802

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00107 3/23/21 SSI10011 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               60.00

JAN EMPLOYMENT FEE
3/23/21 SSI10011 202101 330-57200-34500                                     *               25.00

JAN SCHEDULING FEE
CLAY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE                                       85.00 002803

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00107 3/23/21 SSI10012 202102 330-57200-34500                                     *               40.00

FEB EMPLOYMENT FEE
3/23/21 SSI10012 202102 330-57200-34500                                     *               25.00

FEB SCHEDULING FEES
CLAY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE                                       65.00 002804

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00107 4/13/21 SSI10031 202103 330-57200-34500                                     *               40.00

MAR EMPLOYMENT FEE
4/13/21 SSI10031 202103 330-57200-34500                                     *               25.00

MAR SCHEDULING FEE
CLAY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE                                       65.00 002805

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00069 3/23/21 322683   202104 310-51300-48000                                     *               99.00

NOTICE OF MEETING 4/20/21
CLAY TODAY                                                         99.00 002806

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00054 4/01/21 13129559 202104 330-57200-46500                                     *            1,025.52

APR POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,025.52 002807

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - GF

BANK A PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 4/20/21 00073 4/12/21 361      202103 330-57200-34110                                     *              587.50
MAR FACILITY ASSISTANT

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                                 587.50 002808
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00073 4/12/21 362      202103 330-57200-34200                                     *              945.76

MAR LIFEGUARD SERVICES
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                                 945.76 002809

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00073 4/01/21 360      202104 330-57200-46200                                     *              645.00

APR JANITORIAL SERVICES
4/01/21 360      202104 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,041.67

APR POOL MAINTANENCE
4/01/21 360      202104 330-57200-34000                                     *            1,776.75

APR CONTRACT ADMINISTRATI
4/01/21 360      202104 330-57200-34100                                     *            4,545.75

APR FAC MANANGEMENT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               8,009.17 002810

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00076 1/01/21 550847   202101 320-53800-46400                                     *              770.00

JAN LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              770.00 002811

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 4/20/21 00076 4/01/21 569010   202104 320-53800-46400                                     *              770.00

APR LAKE MAINTRENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              770.00 002812

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 78,313.76

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               78,313.76

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO

























































































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  5/16/21          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 02/01/2021 - 04/30/2021 ***       PINE RIDGE PLANTATION - CAP RS

BANK B PINE RIDGE PLANTATIO

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 2/18/21 00019 2/08/21 E18209   202102 330-57200-49000                                     *            5,610.81
SPLASH POOL LIFT

AQUATIC TECHNOLOGY INC.                                         5,610.81 000033
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                  5,610.81

TOTAL FOR REGISTER                5,610.81

PRP  --PINERIDGE--  BPEREGRINO





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

F. 



March 22, 2021





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



From: Jeff Arp asjjsa2@yahoo.com
Subject: Resignation

Date: May 16, 2021 at 3:53 PM
To: Sarah Sweeting ssweeting@gmsnf.com

Sarah, I wanted to inform you I will be resigning from my position on 6/1/2021 as we have sold our home
and I am no longer eligible to hold my seat. Thank you for this opportunity and I have truly enjoyed
serving. 

Jeff Arp

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:Arpasjjsa2@yahoo.com
mailto:Arpasjjsa2@yahoo.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com
mailto:Sweetingssweeting@gmsnf.com

	Agenda
	III.	Consideration of Replacement of Beam
	IV.	Consideration of Tynes Boulevard Fence
	V.	Consideration of Architect Renderings
	VI.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-04, Approving Request for Proposal Documents for the District’s Recreation Improvement Project
	VIII.	Consideration of Proposals for Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Services
	Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank
	Grau & Associates

	IX.	Consideration of Proposal from Riverside Management Services for Fiscal Year 2022
	X.	Consideration of Resolution 2021-05, Approving the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 and Setting a Public Hearing Date for Adoption
	XI.	Consideration of Richmond American Homes Proposal for Reclaim Irrigation Water Meters
	XII. B.	District Manager – Report on the Number of Registered Voters (1,366)
	C.	Engineer - Requisition No. 393A
	D.	Operations Manager - Report
	XIV. A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 14, 2020 Meeting, February 16, 2021 Special Meeting and the March 16, 2021 Meeting 
	B.	Acceptance of the Minutes of the March 16, 2021 Audit Committee Meeting
	C.	Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period Ending April 30, 2021	
	D.	Assessment Receipts Schedule
	E.	Approval of Check Register
		F.	Ratification of Work Authorization No. 1 from Basham Lucas
	XV.	Acceptance of Resignation from Supervisor Jeff Arp

	Check Box 1: Off
	Check Box 2: Yes
	Check Box 3: Off
	Check Box 4: Off
	Check Box 5: Off
	Check Box 6: Off
	Check Box 7: Off
	Check Box 8: Yes
	Check Box 9: Off
	Check Box 10: Off
	Check Box 11: Off
	Check Box 12: Off
	Check Box 13: Off
	Check Box 14: Off
	Check Box 15: Yes
	Check Box 16: Yes
	Check Box 17: Off
	Check Box 18: Off
	Text Field 1: Riverside Mgmt - Pine Ridge
	Text Field 2: 4200 Pine Ridge Pkwy
	Text Field 3: Middleburg, FL 32068,
	Text Field 4: Pine Ridge 
	Text Field 6: 2103235
	Text Field 8: tchewning@rmsnf.com
	Text Field 9: 904-671-4204 ~Tom Chewning
	CheckBox1: Off
	CheckBox2: Yes
	CheckBox3: Off
	CheckBox4: Off
	CheckBox5: Yes


